
 

BOS 12.4.19 Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Andover 
Board of Selectmen 

Wednesday, December 4, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 
Town Hall Community Room, 17 School Road 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Public Speak 

 
3. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 

 
4. Board and Commission Presentations and Appointments 

 
5. Town Administrator’s Report 

 
6. Old Business 

Discuss and act upon the following: 
a. Decide on October 2020 meeting date (2nd Monday 10/12 is Indigenous People’s Day) 
b. Town’s Personnel Policies 
c. Community Connectivity Grant  
d. Website Development Committee Update  

 
7. New Business 

Discuss and act upon the following: 
a. Permit for use of Town Property, 2020 RiMaConn Relay on Saturday, August 29th 

b. Authorized Signatory for State of CT Grants 

c. Resolution for State of CT Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection, Division of Emergency 

Management and Homeland Security 

d. Town Hall Community Room Usage 

e. Memorandum of Understanding with the Board of Education 

f. Andover District Shared Educational Services Committee 

g. Appointment of a Shared Services Committee to include school, road maintenance and trail services 

h. Appointment of a Community/Senior Building Center Committee 

i. Proposal of the Transfer Station ‘Dump Swap’ Program  

 

8. Approval of Meeting Minutes  
a. Approval of Wednesday, November 6, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of Wednesday, November 12, 2019 Special Meeting Minutes 

 
9. Assessor’s Report 

a. Revaluation Software 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

BOS 12.4.19 Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

10. Treasurer’s Report 
a. Revenue Summary 
b. Town Budget Summary 
c. Town Aid Road (TAR) Update 
d. BOF Policy on Overspending Accounts & Attachments  
e. Proposed schedule for upcoming budget season 

 
11. Budget  

a. Transfers 
b. Refunds 

 
12. Tax Collector’s Report 

a. Refunds Requests 
 

13. Department Reports 
a. Fire Department 
b. Resident State Trooper 
c. Town Clerk 
d. Building Department 
e. Assessor’s Office 
f. Town Garage 
g. Transfer Station 
h. Library 
i. Senior Transportation 
j. Registrars 

 
14. Resignations 

a. Susan Schmidt, Senior Transportation Driver  
 

15. Correspondence  
 

16. Public Speak 
 

17. Adjournment  
 

 
 

Helpfully submitted by the Board Clerk/Administrative Assistant, Amanda Gibson. 
 
 



Administrators Report Dec 4 board of Selectman’s Meeting 

 

CIRMA 

We had a report on a Slip/Fall injury on Times Farm bridge that resulted in multiple broken bones.  

Referred it to CIRMA.  Resident indicated it was black ice on the bridge resulting in the injury 

Lawsuit with old Tax collector still ongoing. 

 

RHAM 

RHAM Meeting NOV 7th  6:30 pm At RHAM media Center to discuss the MBR. Attendance is important to 

understand the effects of this on Andover.    Basic result is MBR does not apply to Andover. 

 

Andover BOE 

Superintendent Sally doyen asked me to go to the next BOE meeting to answer questions about the 

Memo I submitted to the Board of Selectmen.  I am presenting the document on the relative cost of 

Education vs general budget.  General conclusion is that Andover’s spending relative to education and 

the general budget are out of line with other towns.     

 

 

State trooper 

No major Reports working a mix of nights and days.   The speed sign is on Hutchinson Rd It was a 

wakeup for me the first time I saw it (I was speeding 

Transfer station 

I authorized longtime resident of Andover that is now legally blind to obtain a laminated pass to the 

transfer station.  That person will be able to have a friend from Coventry’s truck, or her son bring some 

stuff to the transfer station.  She currently has trash pick up, but needs to get rid of stuff.  Dominic is 

aware of the situation and the procedure, 

Left side block walls are in place Tom P.  is working on a solution to replace the old upright guardrails 

with something that will last better than the previous railings.   

We need a better block for the other side or we need to use a poured wall.  Ledge is not as much of a 

problem on that side so a poured wall is workable.  Looking at other options 

I decided to hold off on paving the left side before spring-  the fill is too wet and until it drains it will 

settle too much.  The reality is that the whole lot needs to be repaved so we would be smarter to do it 

all at once.  



 

After discussing it with Dominic D.  We will open the Transfer Station Dec 26, and Jan 2nd instead of the 

Holidays.  We will publicize it on the town website, facebook page etc.  

 

 

 

Town Hall 

Payroll 

We are still planning on transitioning to electronic submission of records for payroll.  This is the first step 

in changing to automated clock in/ clock out.   

As of Jan 1 we will eliminate paystubs and employees will access the info online.  There will be more 

information from the treasurer. 

Ultimate goal. Ease of use- empower employees accountability and tracking 

 

 

Employee Related Matters 

Resignation of one of the senior transportation drivers (Sue Schmidt) due to Illness.  We will try to hire 

one new driver. 

Josh Snarski  IWWC, James Hallisey  ZEO, Roberta Dougherty Elderly and Social Services Coordinator are 

all hired and on board.     

Kathy Bishop hired as a CDL driver 15$ per hour probationary and $18 per hour after 90 days 

Joe Higgins has escalated the payroll dispute with the Department of Labor and is appealing their ruling 

in our favor.  We may still owe him an additional $224.45.  This is the conclusion with DOL.  Stay tuned 

 

 

Financial  

Account overages Policy BOF    See the minutes from the Board of Finance Meeting.  The basic premise 

is instead of doing mid-year transfers, I as administrator will be allowed to run accounts negative, but 

will do so under strict guidelines and oversite.  $0-2000 department head and Town Administrator 

approval.  $2000-5000 department head, Town Administrator, BOS approval.  $5000+ department head 

and Town Administrator then BOF approval.       

 



Assessors Office 

RFP for Reval is in your packet.  Any comments on the document?  This is preliminary, and I am making 

some small changes to it, but here is the major document.   I will send it to town attorney for review. 

Goal will be to Post it around Dec 11th 

 

Times Farm Bridge 

Still waiting on CME. The times Farm Bridge Account currently has $171,647.81 so probably we will end 

up with around 160,000$ in the account after everything is concluded. 

 

   

 

 

Public works Facility 

 Rusty Billings repaired the soffit’s where the sheds were removed  

Contract signed with shoreline restoration for roof replacement-work imminent. 

I will begin working on the next round of funding and also look at the remaining budget to try to finish 

some electrical work in the building where we have unsafe situations. 

 

Roads and Bridges 

Brandon Handfield of Yantic River Consultants is evaluating all the problem culverts prior to spring 

budget season with the goal of preparing a plan to correct the deficiencies 

Streetscan has been Hired on a 3-year contract to help us with a Pavement evaluation and Pavement 

Management Plan.   

Indus has done Pavement preservation work for Andover this fall.  Work includes Crack sealing as well as 

Mastic road sealing.  I chose to seal roads that needed extensive cracksealing but were still structurally 

sound.  Still evaluating our cost per SF for these treatments.  Because I chose to seal older roads that 

cost per mile is higher.   

Mastic sealing we tried 2 different compounds, (but not on purpose) The major goal of it was to address 

very wide cracks 4-5” wide on Stanly Drive that are not easily addressed any other way.  We also treated 

some potholes on school rd and tried skim patching several alligator sections.  Time will tell if this is 

worthwhile.  There is no good way to deal with wide roadside cracks- regular crack seal will not work- 

we tried that-  You can’t pave over them as the new pavement will fail so the only options are to cut 

them out one at a time and patch, grind the whole road up and start over, or Mastic.   



 Indus Crack sealed Jurovaty Road, School Road, most of Lakeside Drive, Bunker Hill Road from the 

bridge to Route 6, Stanly Drive, Chesterbrook and Oak Road.  

 

Meeting with Rob Alouise of CRCOG transportation is scheduled. 

 

Budget 

 

I am working on budget big picture and capital spending Priority’s for CIP.  I am also looking at the 

capital funds and how to maximize the use of our existing funds.  I am attaching an excel spreadsheet 

with the current list of capital funds and recommendations for future capital funds.  

 

 







 
 
 
 
PROPOSED CALENDAR  
to vote on at Special Meeting on Wednesday, December 11th at 8:30 A.M. 
 

 
BOARD OR COMMITTEE NAME: Website Development Committee 

 
TIME OF MEETING: 8:30-9:30 A.M. 

 
DAY OF WEEK MEETING HELD: 2nd Wednesday of the month 

 
LOCATION OF MEETING: Town Hall Community Room 

 
 
PLEASE INSERT YOUR DATES IN THE MONTHS LISTED BELOW: 

 

January 1/8 

February 2/12 

March 3/11  

April 4/8 

May 5/13 

June 6/10 

July 7/8 

August 8/12 

September 9/9 

October 10/14 

November  *11/11 Veteran’s Day – to pick a different day  

December  12/9 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

RECEIVED:  AT   _ 

ATTEST:  TOWN 

CLERK 



Avon    
Barkhamsted    
Beacon Falls    
Bloomfield    
Bridgewater    
Bristol    
Brookfield    
Brookfield Public Schools    
Brooklyn    
Burlington    
Clinton    
Colchester    no RFP
Connecticut Association of Zoning Enforcement Officials    
Connecticut Council of Small Towns    
Connecticut Institute For Communities    
Coventry    no RFP
Cromwell    
Deep River    
East Hampton    
East Hartford    
East Haven    
East Windsor    
East Windsor Water Pollution Control Authority    
Easton    
Ellington    
Enfield    
Essex    
Fenwick    
Franklin    
Goshen    
Granby    
Greenwich    
Griff Golf    
Haddam    
Hamden    
Harwinton    
Kent (Town)    
Killingly    
Lebanon    no RFP
Ledyard    
Lisbon    
Litchfield    
Madison    

Civic Plus - CT Accounts



Mansfield    
Mansfield Parks and Recreation Department    
Mansfield School Distri     
Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Nation    
Middletown    
Milford    
New Hartford    
Newington    
Newtown    
North Stonington    
Norwalk    
Norwalk Public Library System    
Norwalk Visitors    
Norwich    
Old Lyme    
Old Saybrook    
Orange    
Oxford    
Plainville    
Plymouth CRT    
Pomfret    
Preston    
Putnam    
Putnam Public Schools    
Redding    
Ridgefield    
Ridgefield Parks & Rec    
Roxbury    
Salem    
Sharon    
Simsbury    
South Windsor    
South Windsor Parks & Recreation    
Stamford    
Stamford Business Portal     
Stamford Economic Development     
Stamford Public Schools     
Stonington    
Thompson    
Tolland    no RFP
Torrington    
Torrington Police Department    
Trumbull Library    
Warren    



Washington    
Waterford    
West Haven    
Westbrook    
Willington    
Wilton    
Winchester    
Winchester Economic Development    
Woodbridge    
Woodmont    



CIVICCMS Standard Website Package 
  

Graphic Design 

 Custom Design 

 Fully Responsive Format  (Smart Phones, Tablets) 

Content Development 

 Create All Department & Board Pages 

 Contact Info, Staff Table, Welcome Text 

 Build out all (930) Pages/Files of Content 

 Migrate out 3 years of Minutes 

Staff Training 

 One Full Day of Online Group Training 

 Full Access to Library of Videos/Documentation 

Post Launch Analysis (After 60-90 Days) 

 Group Refresher Training Session (2 Hours) 

 Project Manager Review 

 Traffic Stats, Navigational Structure,               ADA Recheck 

Supplemental Modules at No Cost 

 Bids/RFPS 

 Business  Directory 

 Intranet 

 Agenda Manager 

 Recyclopedia 

 Popular Pages 

  

  



  

  

Secure Hosting 

 SSL Certificates 

 Tier 4 Data Center 

 Nightly Offsite Backups 

 Intrusion Detection, DDoS Mitigation  

Ongoing Customer Support 

 Unlimited Live Support ,Up to 4 Primary Users 

 Free Monthly Webinars 

 24/7 Technical Support 

CIVICCMS Application 

 Annual CMS Usage License 

 Periodic Module Upgrades 

 Full Maintenance & Service Patches 

Also Includes 

 Apache Solr Search Appliance 

 Google Analytics 

 E-Subscriber Mail Lists 

 Social Media Integration 

 Web Forms Builder 

 No Storage Limit on Future Pages & Files 

  

 Year One Investment:  $11,000 

Includes Upfront Development & Annual Services 

  

Year 2 services and beyond 



• Secure Hosting and Security Services 

• Software maintenance including service patches and system enhancements 

• 24/7 technical support and access to the Online Help Center 

• Unlimited Live Customer Support for Designated Users 

• Account Management Team  for ongoing support and web environment evolvement 

• Website redesign after 4 years 

 

Beginning Year 2 Annual Services:   $ 3,000 

 

 

 

CivicPlus Advantage – Alternate Payment Plan (option 2 for payment) 

The CivicPlus Advantage (CPA) payment alternative payment plan provides zero interest, 
level payments that divides the One-Time Implementation Investment expense of your 
project over the first three (3) years of your contract to assist with your initial out of pocket 
expense and budget allocation. Each payment also includes your Annual 
Hosting/Maintenance Services.  
  

1st Year CPA  $ 5,667 
2nd Year CPA  $ 5,667 

3rd Year CPA  $ 5,667 
4th Year Annual $ 3,150 
(annual plus 5% technology fee) 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 



CivicReady Implementation  
 

  
• Fully redundant solution hosting with 99.99% uptime 

• Unlimited administrators, users, groups, subscribers, SMS, voice call, email, and social media 
notifications; unlimited quick launch templates 

• Tools for ESRI-integrated mapping tools, ad-hoc messaging, and notification test environment 

• Multilingual and two-way communications via email and SMS 

• CivicReady Mobile App (iOS & Android) 

• CivicReady portal customization, website embeds, database imports, and web-based 
CivicTraining 

• Residential Database 

• No implementation fee with purchase of website 

  

Annual Services  
 

• CivicReady Software Licensing 

• Software Maintenance Including Service Patches and System Enhancements 

• 24/7 Technical Support and Access to the CivicPlus Community 

• Account Manager  

• Annual Service Fees are also subject to a cumulative annual 5% technology increase beginning 

Year 3 
  

Total Year 1 Investment: $1,618.15 

Annual Services (Year 2): $1,618.15 

 

CivicCMS and CivicReady 

Yr1 (implementation and annual) = $12,618 

Yr2 (annual) = $4,618 

Yr3 (annual) = $4,618 

Yr4 (annual) = $4,849 (5% technology increase) 



 

OR 

CPA option  

Y1 = $7,285 

Y2 = $7,285 

Y3 = $7,285 

Y4 = $4,849 (5% technology increase) 



Hartford Marathon Foundation 860-652-8866

Matt Anderson 860-707-0084
41 Sequin Drive

Glastonbury CT 06033 matt@hartfordmarathon.com

no

no

no Resident State Trooper - if possible
no no Yes - HMF to coordinate unit placement

Registration - Pre Race

Hartford Marathon Foundation Yes

RiMaConn Relay, presented by Webster Bank

130 teams (3 to 6 peoples)

Saturday, August 29th, 2020

Andover Public Library / Public Works Facility / Town Athletic Fields - Parking Only and Hop River Trail 



11/20/19

Matt Anderson



RiMaConn Relay, presented by Webster Bank

95 Mile Relay Race from Lincoln, RI to Hartford, CT
Teams of 3 or 6 will take turns exchanging roughly every 5 miles
to complete distance.  

Saturday, August 29th, 2020

n/a

2 pm - 6:15 pm (Andover Specific)

Trail Crossing @ Parker Bridge, Lake, Shoddy Mill, Wales,
and Burnap Brook

Use of Andover Public Library parking, Public Works parking, and 
Town Athletic Fields parking areas

400 to 800 (sporadically throughout this time period, not all at once)

Matt Anderson

41 Sequin Drive, Glastonbury, CT 06033

860 652 8866 x 119

matt@hartfordmarathon.com

860 652 8145

11/20/20































Community Room Furniture 
 

 

 
 

2- 65” couches 

$798 no tax.  

 

 

 

 

 
$199.00 no tax.  

 

 

 



Hutch. $599 

● height36.00" 

● width66.00" 

 

 

 
 

 Wayfair. $253.94 

Overall 



48.12'' H x 19'' W x 21.12'' D 

Interior 

25.56'' H x 15.75'' W x 16.93'' D 

Interior Freezer 

13.48'' H x 13.75'' W x 15.12'' D 

 

Way fair. Mini fridge $253.94 

https://www.wayfair.com/appliances/pdp/danby-47-cu-ft-freestanding-mini-fridge-

with-freezer-dan1483.html?&experiencetype=2&selectedvertical=5 

 

 
 

Great reviews. $179 

https://www.bestbuy.com/site/insignia-4-3-cu-ft-top-freezer-refrigerator-stainless-

steel/6173901.p?skuId=6173901 

 

 
● Product Height 

43 2/5 inches 

● Product Width 

19 1/9 inches 

● Height To Top Of Door Hinge 

● Info 
● 43 2/5 inches 

● Depth With Handle 

● Info 
● 20 1/2 inches 

https://www.wayfair.com/appliances/pdp/danby-47-cu-ft-freestanding-mini-fridge-with-freezer-dan1483.html?&experiencetype=2&selectedvertical=5
https://www.wayfair.com/appliances/pdp/danby-47-cu-ft-freestanding-mini-fridge-with-freezer-dan1483.html?&experiencetype=2&selectedvertical=5
https://www.bestbuy.com/site/insignia-4-3-cu-ft-top-freezer-refrigerator-stainless-steel/6173901.p?skuId=6173901
https://www.bestbuy.com/site/insignia-4-3-cu-ft-top-freezer-refrigerator-stainless-steel/6173901.p?skuId=6173901


● Total Capacity 

4.3 cubic feet 

 

 
 

 

 

$549W whirlpool 

https://www.bestbuy.com/site/whirlpool-14-3-cu-ft-top-freezer-refrigerator-

black/1118241.p?skuId=1118241 

● Product Height 

62 7/8 inches 

● Product Width 28 “ 

 
 

 

https://www.bestbuy.com/site/whirlpool-14-3-cu-ft-top-freezer-refrigerator-black/1118241.p?skuId=1118241
https://www.bestbuy.com/site/whirlpool-14-3-cu-ft-top-freezer-refrigerator-black/1118241.p?skuId=1118241


 
 

 

 

 

 

TVs’  

Samsung 55” 4K Smart LED TV- $379.99 

 

Samsung 65” 4k Smart LED TV $479.99 

 

LG 65” 4K smart tv $529.99 

 

 

 

 

Furniture: 

Couches $798 

Tables $199 

Hutch  $599 

Delivery $199 

Refrigerator (not chosen yet)$600 on high side 

Coffee maker $50 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Total before TV: $2445.00 

 

TV on high end. $600. Eric is looking into a grant.  

 

Total: $3045.00 (including the TV if we don’t use grant)  
Our Budget is $5000.00 







Volunteers Needed – Shared Services Committee Member  

The Town of Andover is also seeking 2 members of the public to serve on a Shared Services 
Committee.  This committee reports to the Board of Selectman and will assist in formulating and 
evaluating plans to share services and or equipment with other towns  

Please submit your letter of interest to the Board of Selectmen via email at 
adminassistant@andoverct.org  

Notice to the Rivereast: Please publish in the Friday, November 29, 2019 edition.  

mailto:adminassistant@andoverct.org


C o m m u n i t y / S e n i o r  C e n t e r  B u i l d i n g  C o m m i t t e e  M e m b e r  

T h e  T o w n  o f  A n d o v e r  i s  a c c e p t i n g  a p p l i c a t i o n s  f o r  C o m m u n i t y / S e n i o r  C e n t e r  
B u i l d i n g  C o m m i t t e e  v o l u n t e e r  p o s i t i o n .  P l e a s e  s u b m i t  y o u r  a p p l i c a t i o n  t o  
A m a n d a  G i b s o n ,  1 7  S c h o o l  R o a d ,  A n d o v e r ,  C T   0 6 2 3 2  o r  
a d m i n a s s i s t a n t @ a n d o v e r c t . o r g .   

N o t i c e  t o  t h e  R i v e r e a s t :   

P l e a s e  p u b l i s h  i n  t h e  F r i d a y ,  N o v e m b e r  2 2 ,  2 0 1 9  e d i t i o n .   

 

 

mailto:adminassistant@andoverct.org


Transfer Station Swap Proposal 

Submitted by Wendy and Eric Kopp 11/27/19 

We would like initiate a “Dump Swap” program to be executed at the Town Transfer Station. The 
premise of the program is to put less into the bulky waste bin which would benefit the town for two 
reasons,  

• LESSEN the load, thus decreasing how much the town is charged by Willimantic Waste 

• ALLOW for other residents to take and reuse items which could be useful to them 

Location: The SWAP itself would be located in the green garage on the transfer station property. The 
process would allow anyone to take from the deposits if they make one or not. We want to encourage 
reusing, so as long as they have a dump sticker, they can give or take what they want. 

How it works: Each time a resident visits the dump, Dominic would encourage them to put 
“identified” reusable pieces into the swap area and inform them to also take what they would like for 
themselves. Wendy had a conversation with Dominic in October and he is willing to do this. On that 
same day we both witnessed two vanity cabinets going into the bulky waste bin and were on the 
same page this is the type of stuff that needs to have a second chance.  

Green Garage Functions: This 23’ x 23’ space will be the area to which reusable items will be 
brought and stored. The garage also has an 8 feet x 15 feet usable space on the far right. 

Rotation: In the SWAP Garage, there will be a process to tag pieces so that they have a 4 week 
lifespan. Once the 4 weeks are up, volunteers like Eric Kopp will process the pieces into the 
appropriate bins for exit.  

Volunteers: Volunteers such as Eric Kopp, Kevin Regan and Rick Wilson, have agreed to visit 
weekly on Wednesday and/or Saturday to make sure the SWAP garage is orderly and tidy, and that 
pieces are easily accessible. Eric and Dom have a good working relationship, and will make sure that 
Dom’s needs are met at all times.  

Budget for repairs to garage: Per conversation with Eric Anderson, the green garage located on the 
property is vacant and useable for such purpose. Before we kick this program off, repairs will be 
needed to this space including:  

• a new overhead garage door – estimate $4,000 

• Gutters, new cement floor and a new side door with lock – need estimates  

WHAT QUALIFIES as SWAP items: This will be a learn-as-we-go process, for example: 

• Metal: wire, rod iron, brackets, etc. 

• Wood: pressure treated wood, lumber, pallets 

• Furniture: pieces which can be repurposed or used again 

• Fixtures: casters, door knobs, pulls, cabinet hardware 

• Perhaps create a wish list/want board that allows the volunteers to put certain items aside for 
those looking for specific items.  

In conclusion, this is simply a “Feel Good” program to help Andover do its part to help save 
the landfill, make others happy while saving some money for the town in the process. 



Benchmarking Notes and Recommendations 

Transfer Station Swap Shop Recycling Program  

 

Summary:  

I benchmarked three towns (Glastonbury, Columbia, and Mansfield) and evaluated the effectiveness and 

feasibility of a similar proposed program in Andover. Town employees, residents, and program 

volunteers were queried in the study towns and asked questions about effectiveness of their programs 

and the burden costs on towns.  

Town Programs:  

Glastonbury: Has a program called “put n’ take”. Residents can drop furniture and household goods in a 

designated area. Items have to be approved by attendants and items such as dirty couches, air 

conditioners, certain electronics, and other items cannot be placed in the area. The sanitarian was 

contacted and interviewed. He stated that while residents like the area, it is a burden for the attendants 

and the town has unsuccessfully proposed eliminating the program many times. The area has become a 

hangout for many people who wait for things to be unloaded and it can impede traffic at times. The 

attendants complain that they never get to leave the transfer station on time because of the area and 

trying to clear out people at closing time.  

Columbia: Has a small manufactured shed called the “swap shack” that contained many smaller 

household goods and small furniture. Residents can leave items at the shack and take items. I spoke to 

the attendant on duty and he said he has to go over and remove many unacceptable items many times a 

day. Despite signs and the rules, residents leave old and outdated car seats and cribs that cannot be 

reused. While I was there he was removing old stained suitcases and a ladder with a broken rung. He 

also stated that gasoline and oil must be drained from engines but residents do not follow this rule and 

gasoline and oil have been frequently spilled in the shack.  

Mansfield: Has an area at their transfer station in the rear corner of the equipment garage. They have 7-

10 volunteers that rotate coverage and determine what can be put out in the area. Items are limited to 

books, dishes, toys and smaller household items. They do not take furniture larger than a small table. 

While I was there the area had a flurry of activity both in donations and people taking items. The woman 

volunteering had a small booth with heat to keep warm since the space is cold and was drafty. The 

attendant said the area has grown over the years with more items. The space is approximately 15X20 

feet in size.   

Observations:  

While each program has a significant amount of recycled items, all towns report that at least 50% of the 

donated items are not recycled and have to be discarded. This takes a committed volunteer effort to 

clean out the area of stagnant items on a regular basis. The area needs to be staffed and rules 

incorporated determining what items are acceptable and unacceptable. Unsafe, dangerous, or broken 

items need to be removed immediately. All items that come into the swap area needs to be dated or 



sticker color coded and removed after 30 days. One town reported that the impact to reducing the  

tipping fees was marginal and the area serves more as an opportunity for residents to recycle items 

instead of saving the town money. Any town leaders contemplating adding a swap area should make its 

decision based as a service to residents; not as a cost saving strategy. The success of a swap program is 

dependent on volunteers. If not the town will have to decide if they want to add a town employee to 

staff and clean the area. The area must be secured to discourage scavenging after hours. 

Andover’s Proposed Space:  

Andover has a pole barn that was once used to store the landfill’s bulldozer. Half of the area that was 

deemed office has a poured concrete slab floor. This office area is small and will be used to house the 

new three phase generator for the compactors as part of the transfer station upgrade. The other area 

that housed the dozer has a dirt floor. The area with the dirt floor is the best location for a swap shop 

but poses the following challenges and condition issues.  

1. The garage door needs replacing. 

2. There is a bird infestation and over 20 years of bird droppings on the floor.  

3. A large animal appears to be digging under the slab and living there.   

4. The roof leaks from the peak and has numerous small bullet holes that need to be patched. 

5. The dirt floor would need a slab or a wooden floor.  

6. There is a large amount of bees nests (over 100) in the roof that need to be cleared out.  

Conclusion:  

As stated earlier, the decision to add a swap area should be based on adding a service to the town of 

Andover; not to employ a cost saving strategy since it can be proven by benchmarking other towns that 

there is not enough savings to justify the investment. If the town does decide to move forward with a 

swap shop program the following are my recommendations that should be addressed based off of 

benchmarking other towns before a program in Andover is implemented:  

1. Appropriate funds to clean the pole barn, add a slab to the dirt portion of the building, eradicate 

the bees, birds, and animals residing there, replace the garage door, and construct a warming 

area.  

2. Ensure there will be enough volunteers to staff the area and eradicate old items to the metal 

dumpster and bulky waste.  

3. Check with CIRMA to make sure the swap area is covered by the town’s liability policy. 

4. Check with the town attorney to determine any liability issues with the swap shop. 

5. Determine what items will be allowed and maximum sized items.  

6. Use a bulletin board and existing Give and Take Facebook page to advertise larger items and 

wanted items.  

7. Allow visitors a maximum time to browse.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jeffrey A. Murray 



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 1 of 8 
 

Town of Andover 
Board of Selectmen 

November 6, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 
Town Hall Community Room, 17 School Road 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

First Selectman Jeff Maguire called the Regular Meeting to order at 7:02 P.M. 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  
Public Present: See included sign-in sheet.  

 
Jeff Murray MOVED to move Item 5. Assessor’s Report, Item 6. Treasurer’s Report prior and New Business Item 
9g. Appointment of a Shared Services Committee, to be addressed prior to Public Speak.  
Adrian Mandeville SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  

 

2. Treasurer’s Report 
a. Revenue Summary 
b. Town Budget Summary 

Treasurer Barbara Griffin presented the reports to the BOS.  
c. Update on FY 2019 Revenue/Expenditures 

Treasurer Barbara Griffin presented the preliminary and un-audited reports to the BOS.  
Expenditures have been accounted for with the exception of the pending request from the Board of Education 
that the Board of Finance (BOF) transfer 2% of budget into the school improvement fund.  

d. Proposed Policy on Overspending Accounts 
Shared the Board of Finance draft form Request for Overexpenditure of Budget Appropriation. The town needs 
a tracking mechanism of approval for overspending. The BOF is working to finalize the form soon and would be 
the authorized board for approvals.  

 
3. Assessor’s Report 

a. Revaluation RFP 
b. Revaluation Software 

Assessor John Chaponis presented the proposed contracts to the BOS. The software the town has utilized for 
the past 20 years is becoming obsolete. The software company has converted 50 clients in the state of CT with 
9 more currently under contract. The Town of Andover has to make a decision.  

 
Adrian Mandeville MOVED to authorize the Town Administrator to enter into a contract with Vision 

Government Solutions to purchase Vision 8 Appraisal software for $5,000 to replace the previous version that is 

no longer supported.  This would over expend line item 100-01-0113-438 (Software Assessor).  

Paula King SECONDED 

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 

 

Adrian Mandeville MOVED to have the Town Assessor prepare an RFP for the 2021 Revaluation with the 

following conditions attached.  The revaluation will be a full inspection requiring interior access, and will be 

conducted after the town transitions to Vision 8 software. 

Scott Person SECONDED  

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  

 
4. Appointment of a Shared Services Committee to include school, road maintenance and trail services. 

a. Discussion of Bolton’s proposal for school consolidation 34:41  



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 2 of 8 
 

 
Adrian Mandeville MOVED for the BOS to form a Shared Services Committee to seek shared services with 
surrounding towns: Bolton, Hebron, Coventry and Columbia. The BOS to appoint 2 BOS members, 2 BOE 
members, 1 BOF member and direct the Town Clerk to advertise for 2 at large members from the community. 
The Town Administrator would have a non-voting seat on the committee. The committee would meet monthly 
or as needed and provide a monthly report to the BOS. All meetings will be Public Meetings with posted 
Meeting Minutes. The committee to seek proposals from surrounding towns for Public Works, Personnel, 
Community Buildings, Contract Services and Educational Services. Committee will not be permanent, but exist 
for 1 year from the first meeting.  
Paula King SECONDED 
Discussion: 

 
Jeff Murray MOVED to amend the motion to exclude Educational Services and instead send as a Memorandum 
to the BOE to explore themselves as it is not privy to BOS to discuss Educational Services.  
Scott Person SECONDED 
Discussion:  
Adrian Mandeville wants more input from the community throughout the whole process. Committee will have 
to come back to all of the boards and the community in order to make any decisions. Believes there was not 
enough community outreach for the previous shared space discussion.  
Jeff Murray: Any shared services for Educational Services should be done through the BOE. Referred to the 
Town Charter and believes BOS would be overstepping their bounds if the BOS formed a committee explored 
shared Educational Services.  
Jeff Maguire: If the committee were to be established by the BOE, would the BOE reach out to BOS, BOF and at 
large members to form the committee? 
Jeff Murray: If the Memorandum were sent to the BOE, the town could see what they would propose.   
Dan Foran: Announced a point of order. Questioned why Public Speak was skipped over. Proposed a shared 
BOS and BOE meeting to discuss this.  
Jeff Maguire: Explained reasoning to bring forth correct information to the community prior to Public Speak. 
Jeff Maguire: Explained frustrations with changing information regarding finances from the Andover 
Elementary School.  
Jeff Maguire: It will be very difficult to move forward during the next budgeting process without confirmed 
financial information from the BOE.  
MOTION CARRIED 3:2:0 (Paula King and Adrian Mandeville opposed)  

 
5. Public Speak 
 

Mary Douval: Explained that she is being discriminated against with the transfer station ordinance. Since she cannot 
drive and does not have a vehicle, she cannot utilize the transfer station for which she pays. She needs a sticker to use 
on another vehicle when family and friends can bring her, requesting equal access to the Transfer Station. Applauded 
the BOS for all they do and thanked them for their consideration.  
 
Dianne Grenier: Questioned why Public Speak is not at the bottom of the agenda.  
Jeff Maguire: Public Speak to be added to the agenda.  
 
Joel Landry: Opposed to combining educational services. His family did not move to Andover to send their children to a 
different school. Questioned why the town is even exploring this option.  
 
Cathy Desrosiers: Opposed to combining educational services. Only town to combine with would be Hebron as we are 
part of Region 8 and are already invested in AHM and RHAM. Families move to this community because Andover has a 
great educational system and recommends for everyone to have the same opportunities as her own 3 children. The 
BOS should be looking to outsource Public Works. 
 



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 3 of 8 
 

Dan Foran: Town needs to bring positive industry to offset our taxes. There are residents who live in poverty in this 
town but education is important too. What is being done to bring in more revenue?  
Adrian Mandevile: Andover does not have large companies to bring in more tax revenue.   
Dan Foran: Voiced frustration on progress of the Economic Development Commission.  
 
Steven Fuss: Questioned what the formal path to be followed in order to bring concerns to the BOS and the BOE. How 
do we ensure information is correctly relayed? 
Jeff Maguire: Believes the superintendent and BOE needs to be notified if information is being discussed at the BOS 
meetings.   
Jeff Murray: Believes a combined meeting with both the BOS and BOE is a great idea.  
 
Gerard Crème: Thanked Jeff Murray for giving the responsibility back to the BOE. As a BOE member, believes there 
should be open communication. Made a suggestion based on other school districts presenting 3 different budgets and 
then deciding what the community wants. The full BOE needs to be involved and listening to the community, 
functioning as one town and united with the same goals. Thanked the BOS for their work.  
 
Amanda Gibson: Read letter on behalf of Wendy and Eric Kopp regarding a proposed ‘Dump Swap’ program at the 
Town Transfer Station requesting to be discussed in detail at the next BOS Regular Meeting. *See included letter.  
Jeff Murray: Founder of the Give and Take Facebook page. It would be an added burden for town employees and 
people hanging around at the Transfer Station. Item will be added to the next Regular Meeting agenda.  
 

6. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 
 

Jeff Maguire MOVED to add Public Speak prior to the Executive Session and Community Room Adaption under New 

Business.  

No member seconded. 

All members voted in favor of adding items to the agenda.  

 

7. Board and Commission Presentations and Appointments 
a. Economic Development Commission 

i. Re-appointments of Elaine Buchardt, Patrick Dougherty, and Catherine Palazzi to the Economic 
Development Commission, terms to expire 6/30/21.  

ii. ‘Welcome to Andover’ Signage 
iii. CT Economic Resource Center (CERC) EDC 101 Class 
iv. Updates on the Community Voice Channel Board and Vernon Area Cable Advisory Committee 

 
Chair Elaine Buchardt presented on behalf of the EDC.  
There is no staffed position in the Town of Andover for economic development. It is a volunteer run 
commission.  
Projects have been initiated from the commission such as: seasonal monthly Andover Farmers’ Market 
and Business Directory. The Business Directory has been recently updated by EDC Member Cathy 
Palazzi and is currently being updated by Administrative Assistant Amanda Gibson. It is uploaded to the 
town website and is an ongoing project.  
Town of Andover is a member of the Tolland County Chamber of Commerce. Membership cost is $400 
annually. Elaine is on the chamber’s EDC Board (along with Ellington, Tolland, Vernon) and meets every 
other month to shares ideas.  
The Long Term Planning Committee’s Town-Wide Survey results recommended ‘Welcome to Andover’ 
signage. Elaine received advice from the Chamber EDC Board to find a sign maker and it was proposed 
for $4-5k. EDC needs funds approved from the BOS prior to receiving approval from the BOF.  
Chamber EDC Board introduced our EDC to the CT Economic Resource Center (CERC). Elaine would like 
to orchestrate a municipal training workshop, EDC 101 Class, for our community members to attend.  
 



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 4 of 8 
 

Adrian Mandeville: Town needs to provide resources for finding available commercial real estate.  
The EDC would love the opportunity to have more of a platform on the town website and the new 
town Facebook page. 
Through the Chamber, EDC discovered Sustainable CT (www.sustainablect.org) which certifies and 
recognizes municipalities for their ongoing sustainability achievements. 50% of towns are certified 
including neighboring towns such as Coventry. 

 
Jeff Maguire: Hopes to fund the EDC in the future and promote Andover. Requested a more detailed 
plan of economic development for the town. There are no sewers on Route 6.  
Elaine Buchardt: Previously created was the *CRCOG Route 6 Hop River Corridor Transportation Study 
Executive Summary and the *LADA Route 6 Hop River Corridor Executive Summary. *On the town 
website. There could be a packaged sewer system available for a shared industrial park which needs to 
be researched.  
Steve Willard: As a former member of EDC, the town previously solicited companies/organizations 
(such as Key Bank, Walgreens, ECHN) but they were not interested.  

 
The EDC has 2 vacancies they have been working to fill.  

   Lori Blake and Catherine Magaldi-Lewis volunteered to fill the vacancy and serve on the EDC.  
   

Scott Person MOVED to appoint Elaine Buchardt, Patrick Dougherty, Catherine Palazzi, Catherine 
Magaldi-Lewis and Lori Blake to the Economic Development Commission, terms to expire 6/30/21.  
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  
 
Elaine Buchardt is on the Community Voice Channel (CVC) Board as the Andover representative. The 
local channel offers studio time for towns to host programs. She is planning to have Eric Anderson host 
and has also researched how to air town meetings on the CVC website which would require purchasing 
cameras or borrowing from CVC and coordinating volunteers.  
 

b. Library Board of Directors 
i. Re-appointments of Cathleen Desrosiers, Linda Fish, Dianne Grenier, Lisa Kurtz, Julie Victoria, Sharon 

Shevchenko (Alternate), and Jeff Ballard (Alternate) to the Library Board of Directors, terms to expire 
6/30/21. 

ii. Review the Mission Statement, Accomplishments and Future Goals, By Laws, FY 2017-2018 Annual 
Report, 2019-2020 Budget. 

iii. Review the Surveillance Sign Installation Request. 
 

Cathy Desrosiers presented the Andover Library Board of Directors reports. Goal is to continue focusing 
on library services and building maintenance. The painted mural will be done in approximately 2 weeks.  
With the upcoming Connectivity Grant, the front step area will need to be addressed.  
First Selectman Jeff Maguire commended the Library Board of Directors for excellence.  
 
Scott Person MOVED to appoint Cathleen Desrosiers, Linda Fish, Dianne Grenier, Lisa Kurtz, Julie 
Victoria, Sharon Shevchenko (Alternate), and Jeff Ballard (Alternate) to the Library Board of Directors, 
terms to expire 6/30/21. 
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 

 
c. Website Development Committee 

i. Appointments of 2 at large members Scott Chalfant and Amy March along with Administrative Assistant 
Amanda Gibson, BOS Member Adrian Mandeville and Long Term Planning Committee Chair Wendy 
Kopp.  

 

http://www.sustainablect.org/


BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 5 of 8 
 

Adrian Mandeville MOVED to appoint 2 at large members Scott Chalfant and Amy March to join current 
members Amanda Gibson, BOS Member Adrian Mandeville and Long Term Planning Committee Chair 
Wendy Kopp.  Terms to expire 11-6-2020. 
Scott Person SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 

 
8. Town Administrator’s Report 

Town Administrator Eric Anderson presented highlights of his report.  
*Please see attached for the extensive report in the meeting packet.  
 

9. Old Business 
Discuss and act upon the following: 
 

a. Pavement Management System Evaluation 
Paula King MOVED to authorize the Town Administrator to enter into a 3-year contract with Streetscan for 
$6,000 per year to provide pavement evaluation and pavement management services to the Town of Andover 
as outlined in the proposal dated September 12, 2019. 
Scott Person SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 

 
b. Quotes for Pole Mounted Graphic Display Speed Signs 

Town Administrator received a proposal for a street speed sign. Requested data from the Resident State 
Trooper on the recently installed speed sign on Lake Road. Darrell Tetreault offered to retrieve the data from 
the borrower, the Town of Hebron. The speed sign only detects one way in the direction it is facing. BOS to 
refer to the data downloaded from the borrowed sign in order to decide on the purchase of a speed sign. 
 

c. Town Aid Road (TAR) Update 
Town Administrator Eric Anderson announced that the town has not received funding for this year as the state 
has not yet released the bond for Town Aid Road.  
 

d. Town’s Personnel Policies 
Town Administrator Eric Anderson announced that the draft Personnel Handbook is preliminary and needs to 
be reviewed by the town attorneys and unions.  

 
Adrian Mandeville MOVED to adopt the Policy on Town Hall Closures and Holiday Dismissal as presented. 
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  
 
Adrian Mandeville MOVED to adopt the Policy on Senior Transportation driver position requirements as 
presented. 
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 
 

e. Community Connectivity Grant  
Conversations occuring between the DOT and the Town of Andover. Need to submit the application to the 
town’s Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commission for approval. The Town will go to Request for Proposal 
(RFP) in the spring.  

 
10. New Business 

Discuss and act upon the following: 
a. Overspending Accounts – Previously discussed. 
b. Brandon Handfield for Town Engineering Services, Yantic River Consultants, LLC 



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 6 of 8 
 

Adrian Mandeville MOVED to authorize the Town Administrator to hire the civil engineering firm Yantic River 

Consultants to act in the capacity of the town engineer to conduct an assessment of the bridges and culverts in 

Andover and assist the town in developing a plan for their maintenance and replacement as outlined in a 

proposal dated October 30, 2019.   

Paula King SECONDED 

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 

 

c. Meeting Dates 2020 
Adrian Mandeville MOVED to move the Board of Selectmen Regular Meetings to the 2nd Monday of the month 
for the year 2020.   
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  

 
d. BOS Planning Meeting Date 

Jeff Maguire MOVED to hold a Board of Selectmen Special Meeting on Tuesday, November 12, 2019 at 7:00 
P.M. in the Town Hall Community Room. 
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 4:0:1 (Adrian Mandeville abstained)  

 
e. Memorandum of Understanding with the Board of Education 

The BOS signed the Memorandum of Understanding to the Board of Education regarding evening meeting 

space in Andover Elementary School from 5:00 to 10:00 P.M. *See included for the MOU. 

 
f. Appointment of a Community/Senior Center Committee 

Scott Person MOVED for the BOS to form a committee to move forward with the planning for constructing a 
community/senior center in Andover. The Community/Senior Center Committee would confirm the design, 
location and costs. The committee will not be permanent and exist for one year from its first meeting unless 
extended by the BOS. All proposals will be brought back to the appropriate administrative town bodies for 
evaluation and voting as required.  
Jeff Murray SECONDED 
Discussion:  

Jeff Murray suggested to table until the next meeting. BOS decided to move forward since the first committee 

meeting won’t occur until January 2020.  

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  

 
g. Hiring of New Employees: 

i. Zoning Enforcement Officer 
ii. Wetlands Agent  

iii. Elderly and Social Services Coordinator 
iv. Senior Transportation CDL Driver 

 

Adrian Mandeville MOVED to authorize the Town Administrator to hire the following positions:  

James Hallisey for a part time position as the Zoning Enforcement Officer for the terms and conditions 

in the offer letter; 

Joshua Snarski for a part time position as the Wetlands Agent for the terms and conditions in the offer 

letter; 

Roberta Dougerty to a part-time non-union position as the Elderly and Social Services Coordinator 

subject to the terms and conditions in the Memorandum of Agreement between the Town of Andover 

and MEIU, local 506 AFL-CIO; 



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 7 of 8 
 

Kathy Bishop to a part time position as a CDL Senior Transportation Driver for the terms and conditions 

in the offer letter. 

Scott Person SECONDED 

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  

 
h. Adapting Town Hall Community Room for senior usage: 

Town Administrator Eric Anderson: Goal is to better furnish and utilize the community room to better meet the 

needs of the senior population. To check with the Town Attorney Dennis O’Brien on if the BOF can approve 

funds out of the contingency fund or multiuse building fund and whether or not it needs to go to a Special 

Town Meeting.  

11. Approval of Meeting Minutes  
a. Approval of Wednesday, October 2nd, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Jeff Maguire MOVED to approve the Wednesday, October 2nd, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 

No member SECONDED 

Members voted to approve 5:0:0 

 
12. Budget  

a. Transfers 
b. Refunds 

 
13. Tax Collector’s Report 

a. Refunds Requests – None.  
Town Administrator included two reports of the past 2-3 years from the Treasurer’s Office. 
 

14. Department Reports 
a. Fire Department – report attached. 

Town Administrator Eric Anderson thanked the Fire Department for all of their hard work the past month with 
road closures due to storms and a house fire.  

b. Resident State Trooper – report attached. 
c. Town Clerk – report attached. 
d. Building Department – report attached.  
e. Assessor’s Office – report attached.  
f. Town Garage 
g. Transfer Station 
h. Library – report attached. 
i. Senior Transportation – report attached. 
j. Registrars – report attached. 

Jeff Maguire thanked the Registrars for all of the hours they put in on Tuesday, November 5, 2019 for the 
Technology Update Referendum Voting.  
 

15. Resignations – None. 
 

16. Correspondence – None.  
 

17. Public Speak 
 

Dianne Grenier: Town received a large turnout yesterday. Many residents who came thought they were voting for the 
Board of Selectmen.  
Inquired on the crumbling concrete at the Town Transfer Station.  
Adrian Mandeville: Believes the blocks were not treated for salt and new blocks are being treated with a sealer prior.  



BOS 11.6.19 Regular Meeting Minutes                                                                                        Page 8 of 8 
 

Town Administrator Eric Anderson: However, the representative from DCE Concrete kicked blocks and stated it was 
classic pyrite damage and block pattern was made by Moodus. There are no purchasing records from 15 years prior. 
 
Linda Fish: Townsend Road looks great though it was filled with knotweed.  
Eric Anderson: Due to lack of funds, Public Works goes down to the pit and back fills with existing material.  
 
Curt Dowling: The large bus needs a CDL licensed driver and would suggest parking the bus until an employee is hired 
with a CDL.  
Eric Anderson: Town is not hiring any more senior drivers without a CDL license. Hourly rate will increase due to this 
qualification. Senior Transportation volunteer Cathy Palazzi is working to apply for a grant for another bus and 
specifically choosing one under the 16-passenger limit. 

 
Curt Dowling: Highly recommended for Andover to only work together with other Region 8 towns to explore shared 
educational services.  
 
Dianne Grenier: Would appreciate that all meeting reports are uploaded to the town website.  
 
Curt Dowling: Provided an update on the house fire at Rockledge Drive. The volunteer firefighters did a great job 
stopping the fire.  
 
Dianne Grenier: The Fire Department just offered the CPR/First Aid Course on Saturday, November 2, 2019. The Library 
Board encouraged staff to attend and would recommend encouraging town staff to attend future trainings. She is very 
happy with the Fire Department members’ service.  
 
Joel Landry: Highly recommended for Andover to work together with other Region 8 towns to explore shared 
educational services. Suggested for the Economic Development Commission to explore options of a shared sewer 
system on Route 6.  
 
Kevin Reagan: Restaurants/businesses on the westbound lane would benefit since traffic is traveling that direction in 
the morning. Andover Plaza would benefit from a traffic light. 

 
18. Executive Session to discuss contracts 

Executive Session opened at 10:00 P.M. No motion taken.  

 
19. Adjournment  

First Selectman Jeff Maguire adjourned the Regular Meeting and Executive Session at 10:21 P.M. 
 
 
Helpfully submitted by the Board Clerk/Administrative Assistant, Amanda Gibson. 









This letter is from Wendy and Eric Kopp who could not be here tonight due to the 
RHAM Sports Banquet. 

We would like to ask for a “Dump Swap” program to be executed at the Town Transfer 
Station. The premise of the program is to put less into the bulky waste bin which would 
benefit the town for two reasons, 1. LESSEN the load, thus decreasing how much the 
town is charged by Willimantic Waste and 2. ALLOW for other residents to take and 
reuse items which could be useful to them. The SWAP would be located in the garage 
on the transfer station property. We are asking to have this concept added put on next 
Board of Selectmen meeting agenda so we can present a more detailed plan as to how 
this program can run along with the help of volunteers. Thank you, Wendy and Eric 
Kopp 



























Assessor’s office monthly activity –SEPTEMBER 2019 
Processing conveyances 13 
Processing building permits 21 
Prorating motor vehicle grand list 14 
Updating field cards 2 
Correspondence/Phone 103 
Providing assistance to town hall customers (ie taxpayer, title searchers, 
appraisers etc) 

78 

Providing assistance to other departments 14 
Researching mapping issue or questions 3 
Reports and communication with the State of Connecticut/ US Census 2 
MLS research 5 
Scheduling meeting and appointments 4 
Office work – ie filing, updating sales book, scanning documents etc 14 
Personal property grand list All pp declarations processed, labeled, folded, 

stamped & mailed. 
Personal Property/Discovery 26 
Homeowner’s program 
Veteran’s program 
Income & expenses 
Renter’s rebate program 18 
Tax exemptions 2 
Adds to the re, pp or mv grand list 2 
Pa 490 
Provided assistance to BAA 3 
Researching and providing requested information to auditor or software 
vendor (for grand list files or tax bills) 
Real property inspections 4 
Personal property inspections 
Real property appraisals 4 
Taxpayer correspondence 9 
Attorney correspondence 
Tax appeal review/appraisal 
Mls review 5 
Town board/dept assistance 
Review & Approve C of Cs 17 
Review & Approve Farmland & Forestland Assessment Applications 
Review, Approve, & create/data entry on land splits & mergers 
Mapping Research/Discrepancies 1 



BAA/COC Listing Report  TYPE : All  ANDOVER  YEAR : 2004  TO : 2018  DATE : 11/04/2019 PAGE : 1
Conditions:  District:  Reported Type: All  Order By : List No ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NEW
LIST NO NAME / ADDRESS UNIQUE ID COC# BAA GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET

1084 PATCH ALBERT R 598 07771R C  101,800  0  101,800
1 75 PINE RIDGE DR C C 2018 09/25/2019  15,000  0  15,000

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 PRORATE ELDERLY BENEFIT  86,800  0   86,800

1244 SAGLIO ARLENE INEZ 175 07772R C  93,800  0  93,800
1 11 HICKORY HILL DR C C 2018 09/25/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 PRORATE ELDERLY BENEFIT  93,800  0   93,800

1537 WILSON SUSAN POHL 1425 07761R C  304,500 -45,000  259,500
1 37 LYMAN RD 2018 09/12/2019  0  0  0

BOLTON CT 6043-0 CORECTED SQ FT LIV AREA AFTER INSPECTION
 304,500 -45,000  259,500

50070 ANDERSON JAMES E 50078 07758M B  5,990 -2,140  3,850
1 222 LAKE RD 1999 02 DODGE RAM 2500 2018 09/12/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1708 1B7KC2367XJ548416 BAA  5,990 -2,140  3,850

50876 DICKINSON MARGARET K 50885 07756M C  3,620 -2,415  1,205
1 28 RIVERSIDE DR APT 2 2006 01 FORD ESCAPE X 2017 09/05/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 1FMCU93176KD25456 SOLD 1/18  3,620 -2,415  1,205

51239 GIROUX RONALD W 51246 07765M C  21,320 -15,990  5,330
1 16 WOOD FERN WAY 2016 01 BUICK ENCLAVE 2018 09/16/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1132 5GAKVCKD2GJ106483 REG IN FL 12/18  21,320 -15,990  5,330

51240 GIROUX RONALD W 51247 07764M C  11,600 -8,700  2,900
1 16 WOOD FERN WAY 2010 01 CHEVR K1500 SU 2018 09/16/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1132 1GNUKJE39AR272538 REG IN FL 12/18  11,600 -8,700  2,900

51241 GIROUX RONALD W 51248 07763M C  2,170 -1,627  543
1 16 WOOD FERN WAY 2001 01 VOLVO V70 AWD 2018 09/16/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1132 YV1SZ58D011004042 REG IN FL 12/18  2,170 -1,627  543

52008 LEE KENNETH E 52012 07760M B  5,930 -2,535  3,395
1 24 WEBSTER LN 2000 02 FORD F350 SUP 2018 09/12/2019  0  0  0

BOLTON CT 6043-7825 1FTSF31F6YEB04678 BAA  5,930 -2,535  3,395

53205 RYDER PAUL J 18A010 07766M C  4,550 -4,550  0
1 P.O. BOX 134 2009 01 TOYOT CAMRYSE 2018 09/17/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 4T1BE46K39U846408 WRONG TT SENT TO COVENTRY  4,550 -4,550  0

53481 STRATTON CHRISTOPHER T 53481 07770M C  2,640 -879  1,761
1 706 EAST ST 2005 01 NISSA ALTIMA S 2017 09/24/2019  0 0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1407 1N4AL11D15C100963 SOLD 5/18  2,640 -879  1,761

53746 USB LEASING LT 53745 07762M C  25,970 0  25,970
1 1850 OSBORN AVE 2018 03 RAM 2500 SLT 2018 09/16/2019  0  25,970  25,970

OSHKOSH WI 54902-6197 3C6UR5DJ7JG232574 CGS 12-81 (53)  25,970 -25,970  0

54054 MANSELLE TIMOTHY C 18A030 07759M B  20,020 -1,375  18,645
1 8 KINGSLEY DR 2015 03 CHEVR SILVERAD 2018 09/12/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 3GCUKREC0FG51507 BAA  20,020 -1,375  18,645

54056 GILBERT RYAN 17A069 07768M C  0  32,480  32,480
0 PO BOX 205 2014 04 RAM RAM TRUC 2017 09/23/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 3C63RRKL5EG161582 ADD FROM MANSFIELD  0  32,480   32,480

54058 GILBERT RYAN 18A034 07769M C  0  30,450  30,450
0 PO BOX 205 2014 04 RAM RAM TRUC 2018 09/23/2019  0  0  0



BAA/COC Listing Report  TYPE : All  ANDOVER  YEAR : 2004  TO : 2018  DATE : 11/04/2019 PAGE : 2
Conditions:  District:  Reported Type: All  Order By : List No ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NEW
LIST NO NAME / ADDRESS UNIQUE ID COC# BAA GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 3C63RRKL5EG161582 ADD FROM MANSFIELD  0  30,450   30,450

80159 DICKINSON MARGARET K 80159 07757S C  4,035 -1,348  2,687
1 28 RIVERSIDE DR APT 2 2012 01 HONDA ACCORD E 2017 09/05/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 1HGCP2F74CA232495 SOLD 7/18  4,035 -1,348  2,687

80233 GILBERT RYAN G 80233 07767S C  18,936 -18,936  0
1 44 WALES RD 2014 02 RAM RAM TRUC 2017 09/23/2019  0  0  0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1219 3C63RRKL5EG161582 DUPLICATE - ADD FROM MANSFIELD 17 GL
 18,936 -18,936  0

TOTAL # Of Accts 17  626,881 -42,565  584,316
 15,000 25,970  40,970

 611,881 -68,535  543,346

YEAR 2017 # Of Accts 17  626,881 -42,565  584,316
 15,000 25,970  40,970

 611,881 -68,535  543,346

GRAND TOTAL # Of Accts 17  626,881 -42,565  584,316
 15,000 25,970  40,970

 611,881 -68,535  543,346



ANDOVER PUBLIC LIBRARY -

LIBRARIAN'S REPORT - October 2019

Oct-19

YTD 19-20 

(July 1,

2019 - June 

30, 2020)

Adult:
Fiction 495 2127

Non-fiction 90 411

Video 108 456

Audio 55 236

Magazines 1 22

E-reader (Kindle) 0 0

Total Adult 749 3252

Children:
Fiction 175 1002

Non-fiction 17 150

Video 4 72

Audio 55 57

Total Children 251 1281

Young Adult:

Fiction 47 199

Non-fiction 3 7

Audio 0 1

Magazines 0 0

Total Young Adult 50 207

Total Fiction 717 3328

Total Non-fiction 110 568

Total Video 112 528

Total Audio 110 294

Total Magazines 1 22

Total Uncategorized** 26 132

Total Passes 0 12

Total OverDrive 134 582

Total E-readers 0 0

Total Circulation 1210 5466

Out-of-town circ. 115 448

Ref. questions 38 217

Patrons registered:

Andover 3128

Out-of-town 461

Total Patrons 3589

Collection size * 19752

Public Computer Usage (hrs.) 61.75 250.5

ILL provided 65 273

ILL received 72 225

# Patrons (inc. programs): 577 3230

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE 147 710

Number of programs: 12 53



11/4/2019 

ANDOVER SENIOR TRANSPORTATION 
MONTH OF OCTOBER 2019 

Dated 11/4/2019 
Cathy Palazzi 

Senior Coordinator 
Month of October: 

1) CDL driver hired. Andover will qualify with DOT for another van or bus in 2020.
2) Senior Transportation is now in compliance with DOT regarding Title VI.
3) Drug tests – one driver – okay.
4) Town Administrator and Senior Coordinator completed a document for Driver Position Requirements. Each
driver has signed.
5) Annual Driver Safety classes scheduled for December. To be completed by end of January.
6) All town senior vehicles information compiled and sent to Town Administrator/ and Assistant.
7) BOS Liaison appointed. Paula King to report any vital information to BOS.
8) Maintenance line has $1383.74 remaining and will keep updating Town Administrator as needed.
9) New timesheets presented by Treasurer’s office.
10) Number of people serviced in October:

• Medicals 44 
• Shopping 51 

(includes Food Pantry/Food Share/Friday Lunch) 
• Special Events 10 
• Maintenance   2 
• Incident Log   1 
• Disabled 30 
• Veterans   9 
• Passengers 150 

Dated 11/4/2019  
Cathy Palazzi 
Senior Coordinator 



October Monthly Report for Registrars of Voters November 6, 2019 

• Wallace Barton, Jr. Republican Registrar of Voters 
• Elinor Skoog Republican Deputy Registrar of Voters 
• Linda Derick Democratic Registrar of Voters 
• Julie Victoria Democratic Deputy Registrar of Voters 

• ROV Tolland County Meeting on October 2
• Town Meeting on October 23, 2019
• Changed election workers (not ROV or Deputy ROV) to regular paycheck; no

longer payroll
• Regular office hours:  Linda on Mondays from 10-12 and Wally on

Wednesdays from 10-12 and/or as needed
• Monthly voter processing:

o Additions 19
o Changes 5
o Removals 10



BOS 11.12.19 Special Meeting Minutes                                                                        Page 1 of 1 

 

BOS 11.12.19 Special Meeting Minutes                                                                    Page 1 of 1 
 

Town of Andover 
Board of Selectmen 

November 12, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 
Town Hall Community Room, 17 School Road 

 
Special Meeting Minutes  

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

First Selectman Jeff Maguire called the Special Meeting to order at 7:01 P.M. 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
Public Attendees: See sign-in sheet included. 
 

2. Public Speak - None. 
 

3. Town Hall Community Room Renovation 
Town Administrator Eric Anderson shared the letter of approval from Attorneys O’Brien and Johnson regarding 
Proposed Expenditures for “Adapting Town Hall Community Room for Senior Usage”. *See included letter. 

 
Jeff Murray MOVED that in accordance with the Town Charter, to request that the Board of Finance authorize spending 
up to $5,000 from the multiuse building fund, #L100-00-370-047 to better furnish and utilize the community room as an 
interim community/senior center.  
Paula King SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0 
 

4. Planning and Priority Discussion 
Town Administrator Eric Anderson shared the extensive planning list of Andover Town Goals with the BOS Members to 
request what the town’s priorities should be. *See included document. 
BOS Members discussed numerous items on the document.  

 
5. Public Speak 

Cathy Palazzi: Town needs CDL licensed drivers in order to qualify with the state for grants to fund future buses. Other 
towns only hire CDL licensed drivers. She currently has two more CDL drivers to interview. When there is an overlap of 
medical appointments, it would be better to have smaller vans and more drivers. At this point, smaller vehicles do not 
require a CDL driver. Town has to comply with the state rules and at some point, all the town drivers will need to have a 
CDL license. BOS requested to have in writing that the state requirement is to have CDL licensed driver. 
Thanked the staff for putting the community room flags in their proper place.  
Town Hall needs a better heating system in the building.  
Received complaints from the community that town street lights recently being turned off is one of the causes of crime 
in our town. Our Resident State Trooper has suggested for residents to lock their vehicles.   
 

6. Adjournment 
Jeff Murray MOVED to adjourn the Special Meeting. 
Adrian Mandeville SECONDED 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0  
First Selectman Jeff Maguire adjourned the Special Meeting at 9:21 P.M.  

 
Helpfully submitted by the Board Clerk/Administrative Assistant, Amanda Gibson.  

Amanda Gibson  
Please see the minutes of subsequent meetings for the approval of these minutes and any corrections hereto. 









Andover Town Goals 
This document is designed to start the conversation- We should try to have a BOS Planning workshop on this in NOV.  I 

really need to get guidance from the whole board on what I should be focusing on and make sure my efforts are 

aligned with your priorities.   

 

Seniors/ Community needs 

 Short term Space- 

1. Better utilize the existing community center for senior needs. 

2. Storage and furniture solutions 

3. Explore other area community centers and groups to share needs/usage 

4. Do we consider the firehouse for space utilization? 

5. MOA with AES to use building for meeting space in the evening 

Longer term Space-   

1. Build a stand alone Senior focused  community center 

a. Location for the center? 

b. Combine with Bolton and build a new joint center? 

c. Funding and source 

d. Building Committee? 

e. What should the building include? 

i. Meeting spaces  adaptable for multiple sized groups 

ii. Commercial kitchen 

iii. Gym 

iv. Office space 

v. Kids space- COOL program? 

vi. Storage for  Senior transportation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Senior Transportation 

1. Vehicles 

a. Apply for state matching funds for 1-2 more  senior transportation vehicles 

i. December timeframe 

ii. Should it be a 20 PAX vehicle or smaller? 

iii. Second  small van 

b. Ideal size operation today should be 2 vans and (2) 12-15 Pax buses .  All should have a handicapped lift gate.   

We currently use the van for medical calls with the small bus used when we have a second medial at the same 

time. Large bus is used for trips only ~6-8 times per year.   We should consider subbing out and hiring a full size 

bus for senior trips.   

c. Current vehicles     

i. 2002 20 passenger bus with handicap ramp – approximately 150K? miles 

ii. 2014 dodge Van with handicap ramp. Van used four days a week for medical calls 35? K miles. 

iii. 2017 12 passenger bus with handicap ramp – 10?K miles This vehicle is owned by the DOT until 

November 2022.Bought with  80% state and 20% Town of Andover grant.  

2. Senior Driver  

a. Transition to all CDL drivers if possible  

i.   will require an increase in pay scale ~18$  

1.  Current pay is 13.40$/hour.  If we maintain a 3% yearly pay raise, we will stay ahead of , but lose 

ground on the new min wage mandates, by 2023 we would be paying  15.08$/hour when the min 

wage was 15$/hour 

ii. Will we need to offer some kind of training for CDL. 

iii. Institute new Policy and Drivers Handbook as part of the employee Handbook 

iv. Will need to add at least one driver from what we have currently 

3. Additional staffing 

a. At some point we are going to need to pay for the coordination services that Cathy Palazzi currently does for free. 

b. Cathy does a wonderful job, but at some point it needs to transition to a staff position 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Public Works 
Building 
Goal  “Maintain the current public works building as  a viable space as a cost effective solution with a minimum 30 

year time horizon for utilization” 

1. Space clean up 

a. Throw away unused junk clean up weeds so all materials are visible and accessible 

b. Interior cleanup and paint office  Winter project 

c. Remove the old metal room on the back of cold storage- replace open doorway 

2. Roofs  

a. Current RFP will cover replacing the Main roof of the public works Building. 

b. Will need additional funding for replacing roofs on the cold storage building in the next 3 years 

c. Will need additional funds for replacing roof on the low pitch roof on front building on garage in the next 

10 years 

3. Walls and windows 

a. Walls need repointing and limited brick and masonry repairs for long term stability 

b. Can we get an insulated solution to reduce future energy usage? 

c. Repaint exterior because it looks like hell 

d. Remove the shed roofs on the side of the main building- not worth repairing 

4. Asbestos 

a. Finish Asbestos abatement on the sheds so they can be torn down 

5. HVAC 

a. Replace the main ceiling whole building  vent- old and not working 

b. Use a ductless split AC system to heat and cool the office/ break  area-  currently using electric baseboard 

and window AC unit 

c. Evaluate the main unit heaters in the bays. 

d. Evaluate heating system in the animal control facility 

6. Electrical 

a. Building appears to have 3 phase  Y 208 service that is old- very old.  

b. Use staff electrician to come up with a work plan for addressing the electrical  Updating needed for safety 

and functionality 

c. Plan to use excess money from the 80K request to resolve electrical issues 

d. Need a complete evaluation of electrical system in the building nothing is labeled and not logical much of 

the wiring dates to the old mill building 50+ years old 

e. Replace with a main  3 phase panel - switchgear or similar 

f. Prioritize additional work  based on code compliance 

i. Remove 440v transformer- not functioning but live- can’t figure out how to turn it off! 
ii. Remove fuse box in tool room that has one powered leg unfused- bad safely violation! 

iii. GFCI Outlets for the bays 

7. Overall space needs 

a. Fix salt shed walls with new steel panels 

b. Consider a wash rack 

c. Repave parking area.  

8. Security 

a. Camera system in pw building 

b. Cameras on the busses and fuel storage area 

c. Gps monitors on all of the town vehicles  PW and Senior Transportation? 

d. Permanent fix for fire alarm at PW garage still not functioning properly 



  

Staffing Needs 

1. We need to return to a 4 man crew minimum for public works. 

a. We simply do not have enough manpower to complete the tasks that we need done 

b. This gives us 2 crews of 2 for most tasks or a crew of 3 and the supervisor on independent tasks 

2. Ideally we would sub out tree work to Hebron’s crew. 

i. This one is going to be important since Scott Person’s list of trees the town needs to take down exceeds 

100 total- I don’t have an exact count 

ii. A first pass on costs to the town would be over 100K in tree removal needed in the next year 

3. Ideally we would combine with Hebron on a new Sweeper and use their crew for spring needs this would take CIP 

support 

4. Utilize Susan M. for ~ 8 hours of logistical support  per week for PW 

5. Replace the public works foreman by July 2020.   

6. One of the real advantages of a 4th person is the ability to allow PW employees to take vacation in the winter.  Currently 

we prohibit taking vacation in DEC-March  That means that in April through November PW employees have 4 weeks of 

vacation and 4 personal days each. Plus sick time of course!  Call it 15+ weeks total for the crew.  This means that for 

those 32 weeks in the summer about ½ the time we have only 2 people available. 

Outside Staffing and Support 

1. Contract with  a Pavement Management Service to help prioritize roadwork-   

a. Especially important if we consider bonding 

b. Produce a long term roadwork plan for Andover 

c. Figure out what our true backlog of work is and what our yearly expenditures need to be 

2. Need an engineering service that can produce a long term plan for Bridges and Culverts and help with securing funding 

for those types of projects- in talks now 

3. Need a contracted Staff Electrician 

4. Need a contracted Staff plumber 

5. Need a contracted Staff HVAC technician 

6. Need a contracted Staff landscaping service 

7. Need a contracted Staff rec field maintenance agreement 

8. Need a contracted Parts wall for public works 

9. Can we unify IT support throughout all town buildings? 

10. 3-9 should go to RFP when I have a chance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Winter Operations for Public Works 

1. We should have the new plow  truck back from equipment services by Nov 15th 

2. I am planning on keeping the 4th truck through the winter as a spare.  I have made it clear that if it breaks and it is 

expensive we will junk it but as long as we can keep it running are not putting much money into it.   Since our oldest 

primary truck is now 14 years old having a spare is nice.   

3. We have quite a bit of winter equipment that really is not useful- something like 4 extra plows.  I am planning on keeping 

one, striping springs and bushings off of a few others and junking them.  

4. Salt 

a. The Big change I am planning on implementing is switching to 100% treated salt only for winter operations. 

b. Many towns have gone to this for winter operations 

c. Advantage #1 much less road sweeping in the spring and a lot less sand in the culverts and basins as well as build 

up on the sides of the roads 

d. Salt only has to be done carefully.  First it needs to be applied at the beginning of a storm, not waiting until a 

storm has dumped 2-3 inches of snow 

e. The salt is applied to the crown of the road, ideally ~ 400 lbs per centerline mile  just before it snows.  This is 

temp dependent.  Heavier application on hills, less in the lake district  

f. We will retain sand for use for emergency traction to assist the FD or for public safety.  It may be needed when it 

is very cold  less than 0 deg f  when icing is a problem 

g. At some point the town should consider modifying equipment to allow brining the roads or at least pre wetting 

the salt mix as we put it down. 

 

 

Transfer Station 

1. Still having compactor issues on #2 

2. Can’t get double locking blocks without a long delay and cost BCE is back making single locking blocks 

3. Still trying to squeeze one side worth of Wall repair in this fall, but we will be working short staffed due to vacation. 

4. Need an electrician to evaluate the whole of electrical needs for the transfer station.  What we have now is a 

hodgepodge and we need to clean it up. 

5. The overhead door on the blue pole barn is shot.  Overhead door gave us a quote for ~4000$ to replace not likely to 

happen anytime soon. 

6. Do I order the replacement shed now or wait until spring? 

  



Andover Town Hall 

1.   IT.  

a. Address Immediate shortfalls that town hall Has in servers, firewalls backups and virus protection.  . Hopefully 

town meeting approves money to do this.   

b. Get the town on a replacement schedule for  PC’s (5 years), and Monitors (7 years).  Get rid of as much old 

unused equipment as possible. 

c. Insure common software is licensed and kept reasonably current 

2. Finance 

a. Evaluate and Introduce new software for municipal financial management next 6 months  

b. Revamp Chart of Accounts  

i. Get a universal set shared between the school and town hall 

ii. Revamp the chart structure to consolidate department expenses into smarter expense buckets  

concentrate on PW and Bld Dept 

c. Change from the current paper based labor intensive method of Payroll to a secure, accurate electronic method 

i. Institute biometric scanners in Town Office building Public Works and Library 

ii. Institute smartphone based system for Transfer Station Employees, as well as building official ZEO, IWCC 

and Senior Transportation Drivers. 

iii. Require all employees to file their own leave requests electronically for dept signature and better 

tracking.   

3. Accessor’s office 

a. Institute new Software to replace current Vision Appraisal services.  RFP? 

b. RFP for Reval to start Fall 2020 

4. Space needs 

a. Town Hall has significant space constraints in the current building.  If the town builds a new center, it should 

contain multiple meeting spaces 

b. The Town hall  would take over  the community Room and put the Building and land Use Department in it.  This 

would allow permanent Space and get them out of the basement. 

c. I would move downstairs into the basement along with my admin assistant into the land use office   This would 

also accommodate a small conference table 

d.  My old office would become the employee lunch/ Break room with a small kitchenette. 

e. The new server room would get built into the back of the stat troopers office. 

5. Physical infrastructure 

a. The biggest issue the building has is a reliance on crappy wall mounted AC units for summer cooling.  This should 

be rectified with a ductless split AC system for the town hall  



Communication Strategy 

1.  Website  

a. I would like the website committee to report back to the Board of Selectman at the dec meeting with a tentative 

set of goal/s and criteria and or RFP for  selecting a provider.  

b. Ideally pick a contractor/ team by the  March meeting 

2.  Social Media 

a. Should be implemented already-  I am behind the curve on this one 

3. Other communication  Community Voice Channel  

4. Emergency communication should be part of the web strategy It has to be seamless and easy 

 

OVERALL STAFFING GOALS 

Currently we have 10 full time employees 

 1 works 44 hours/ week 

 3 work 40 hours per week (public Works) 

 4 work 34 hours per week 

 2 work 30 hours per week 

 Benefits are expensive- Health care alone is about $20,000 per FT employee 

 

Land Use 

Areas we need more support IWC and ZEO total from 10-15 hours per week cost 7800$ direct cost increase Assume $9000 total 

costs for budget 

Transition to CDL drivers impact- increase from $13.41 to $18 per hour since we are currently budgeted for about 1125 hours of 

labor this is an increase of 5200$  We  under budgeted for  Salary anyway  since our usage is increasing. Next year I would expect 

the total increase for senior transportation to be~ $12,000 based on these 2 factors. 

Senior Services 

Add a 19 hour per week Position for Senior and Social Services Includes managing the senor transportation and senior events as 

well as Social services 

Assume 20$ per hour  ~$20,000 per year direct costs ~22,000 total cost increase 

 

Admin Assistant 

Increase Admin assistant to 21$ per hour and 19 hours per week. This would cost an additional $7000 

Public Works 

Add a Maintainer 1 for public works  $45,260 + ~$35 000 benefits  ~$ 80,000 

Reductions 



When the Assistant to Treasurer retires next Dec Replace with 19 hours per week position for payroll and Assume ~ 21$ hour 

current salary and indirect ~$60,000  Proposed would be  $21,000, ½ of which would be realized next year  Assume - 20,000$ 

savings next year $39,000 savings in the following year 

Total Change would be ~$110,000  Not including the 2-3 % raises baked into the union contracts.   

 

Capital Costs 

Public Works Building  

Assume we are going to add about $100,000 to the building fund Priority would be electrical work to bring it up to code, Repoint 

and repair walls,  Replace electric baseboard in offices with Ductless split system. 

Equipment for PW 

Per the Capital improvement Plan for Public works, Andover should plan on about $125,000 in capital costs for Public works 

 Priority will be a sidearm roadside mower OR if We work with Hebron, our portion of a new road Sweeper 

Tree trimming   

Scott Person identified about 100 Dead trees on town Roads that need to be removed  Ball park this will cost in excess of 

100,000$  Since BOF did not increase the budget last year as requested, this year we should plan on 100,000$ 

Bridge and Culvert fund 

After times farm bridge is complete we will have approximately  160,000$ in the replacement fund for that.   This fund should be 

rolled into a General purpose Bridge and Culvert Replacement fund with consideration for adding additional funds as time goes 

by.   

Road work 

Paving  represents a big unknown cost wise.  My best guess at this point is we are about 2.5 million dollars behind on roadwork/ 

paving.  Our total costs are higher now than they would have been if we just maintained them to begin with 

Our general maintenance expenditure should be about $10,000 per centerline mile per year- so to Maintain the same average 

condition as current requires about $340,000 per year in surface treatments.  This does not account for drainage/ tree removal, 

guardrails, striping.    

 

Connectivity Grant 

1. Keep working on it with Gerry  Hardisty 

2. Re apply to wetlands  

3. Coordinate with State DOT on Signal project that impacts this project. 

4. Finish project list and get it back to state for final approval. 

5. Go to RFP in March Timeframe.   

















































11/27/2019SW - Rev Summary

Andover Town & School 2019-2020 Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Orig Revenue Transfers Adj Revenue Mtd Net Ytd Debits Ytd Credits Balance % Recvd

Note: AcntBalance Includes AcntInvoiced Balance

10 Property Taxes

Current Year Taxes101 $0.00 $2,367.88 $5,947.05 ($5,947.05) --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

COC102 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Interest on Active103 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($20,802.32) 40.56%$35,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $14,197.68

Lien on Active Taxes104 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,418.47 218.21%$1,200.00 $0.00PROGRAM $2,618.47

Principle on Suspense105 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Interest on Suspense106 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Lien on Suspense107 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Prior Year Taxes108 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($100,000.00) 0.00%$100,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

NSF/DMV/Fees109 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Supplemental MV110 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Reclass of Transfers for Statement900 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

General Revenue0000 $136,200.00 $2,367.88 $5,947.05 ($125,330.90) 7.98%$136,200.00 $0.00FUNCTION $16,816.15

Property Taxes10 $136,200.00 $2,367.88 $5,947.05 ($125,330.90) 7.98%$136,200.00 $0.00OBJECT $16,816.15

20 Intergovernmental Revenues

Boat Registrations203 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

PILOT State Property209 $9,631.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%$9,631.00 $0.00PROGRAM $9,631.00

Vetern's Tax Relief211 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Property Tax Relief and Circuit Bre213 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Manufacturers Grant221 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Municipal grants in aid222 $2,620.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,620.00) 0.00%$2,620.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Mashantucket-Pequot Grant223 $6,680.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($6,680.00) 0.00%$6,680.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

State Miscellaneous226 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,965.00) 34.50%$3,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $1,035.00

Municipal Revenue Sharing227 $43,820.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%$43,820.00 $0.00PROGRAM $43,820.00

Disabled Program238 $450.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($450.00) 0.00%$450.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Telephone Access239 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($5,000.00) 0.00%$5,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

FEMA-1/FY13418 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Page 1 of 3



11/27/2019SW - Rev Summary

Andover Town & School 2019-2020 Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Orig Revenue Transfers Adj Revenue Mtd Net Ytd Debits Ytd Credits Balance % Recvd

Note: AcntBalance Includes AcntInvoiced Balance

FEMA-2/FY13419 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

General Revenue0000 $71,201.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($16,715.00) 76.52%$71,201.00 $0.00FUNCTION $54,486.00

Historic Documents Preservation 231 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

General Government0100 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00FUNCTION $0.00

Federal Highway Grants201 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Local Capital Improvements215 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Municipal Revenue Sharing227 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Public Works0300 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00FUNCTION $0.00

Law Enforcement Overtime207 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

DOT Moving Violations Grant237 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Public Safety0400 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00FUNCTION $0.00

Special Education217 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Education Cost Sharing219 $1,921,253.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,405,004.00) 26.87%$1,921,253.00 $0.00PROGRAM $516,249.00

Transportation Grant225 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Education0900 $1,921,253.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,405,004.00) 26.87%$1,921,253.00 $0.00FUNCTION $516,249.00

Intergovernmental Revenues20 $1,992,454.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,421,719.00) 28.64%$1,992,454.00 $0.00OBJECT $570,735.00

30 Investment Income

Interest303 $25,000.00 $0.00 $4,363.83 ($4,520.25) 81.92%$25,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $24,843.58

General Revenue0000 $25,000.00 $0.00 $4,363.83 ($4,520.25) 81.92%$25,000.00 $0.00FUNCTION $24,843.58

Investment Income30 $25,000.00 $0.00 $4,363.83 ($4,520.25) 81.92%$25,000.00 $0.00OBJECT $24,843.58

40 Licenses, Fees and Charges for Good

Permits401 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($500.00) 0.00%$500.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Town Clerks fees, licenses, and p407 $45,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($21,779.87) 51.60%$45,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $23,220.13

Town Clerk PA05228408 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Dial-A-Ride409 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

Selectman's Receipts417 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 --$0.00 $0.00PROGRAM $0.00

General Government0100 $45,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($22,279.87) 51.03%$45,500.00 $0.00FUNCTION $23,220.13

Page 2 of 3



11/27/2019SW - Rev Summary

Andover Town & School 2019-2020 Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Orig Revenue Transfers Adj Revenue Mtd Net Ytd Debits Ytd Credits Balance % Recvd

Note: AcntBalance Includes AcntInvoiced Balance

Transfer Station Receipts413 $36,000.00 $0.00 $40.00 ($15,240.00) 57.67%$36,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $20,800.00

Waste Redemption415 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($314.80) 37.04%$500.00 $0.00PROGRAM $185.20

Sanitation and Waste0700 $36,500.00 $0.00 $40.00 ($15,554.80) 57.38%$36,500.00 $0.00FUNCTION $20,985.20

Building Department Receipts405 $32,000.00 $0.00 $1,683.77 ($14,549.71) 54.53%$32,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $19,134.06

Planning and Land Use0800 $32,000.00 $0.00 $1,683.77 ($14,549.71) 54.53%$32,000.00 $0.00FUNCTION $19,134.06

Licenses, Fees and Charges for G40 $114,000.00 $0.00 $1,723.77 ($52,384.38) 54.05%$114,000.00 $0.00OBJECT $63,339.39

80 Other Revenues

Miscellaneous801 $3,000.00 $0.00 $411.24 $1,980.19 166.01%$3,000.00 $0.00PROGRAM $5,391.43

Rentals803 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($337.00) 77.53%$1,500.00 $0.00PROGRAM $1,163.00

General Revenue0000 $4,500.00 $0.00 $411.24 $1,643.19 136.52%$4,500.00 $0.00FUNCTION $6,554.43

Other Revenues80 $4,500.00 $0.00 $411.24 $1,643.19 136.52%$4,500.00 $0.00OBJECT $6,554.43

General Fund - Town100 $2,272,154.00 $2,367.88 $12,445.89 ($1,602,311.34) 29.48%$2,272,154.00 $0.00FUND $682,288.55

$2,272,154.00 $2,367.88 $12,445.89 ($1,602,311.34) 29.48%$2,272,154.00 $0.00Grand Total for Report $682,288.55

Page 3 of 3



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00$2,500.00 $2,500.00First Selectman Salary 0.00%1-100-01-0101-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $4,800.00$4,800.00 $4,800.00Selectmen Salary 0.00%1-100-01-0101-105 $0.00

$555.00 $0.00 $945.00$1,500.00 $1,500.00Board Clerk BOS 37.00%1-100-01-0101-115 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00CONF. SEMINARS 0.00%1-100-01-0101-330 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Moving 0.00%1-100-01-0101-381 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Mileage 0.00%1-100-01-0101-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Dues/ Memberships 0.00%1-100-01-0101-810 $0.00

$176.63 $0.00 $323.37$500.00 $500.00Veteran's Day Committee 35.33%1-100-01-0101-836 $0.00

General Government01 $731.63 $0.00 $8,668.37 7.78%$9,400.00 $9,400.00 $0.00

$16,347.30 $0.00 $71,202.70$87,550.00 $87,550.00Town Administrator Salary 18.67%1-100-01-0102-100 $0.00

$4,701.44 $0.00 $9,138.56$13,840.00 $13,840.00Adminstrative Assistant 33.97%1-100-01-0102-120 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Merit Based Compensation Adj Pool 0.00%1-100-01-0102-150 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $300.00$300.00 $300.00Conference/Seminars 0.00%1-100-01-0102-330 $0.00

$210.45 $0.00 $439.55$650.00 $650.00Mobile Phone 32.38%1-100-01-0102-535 $0.00

$200.00 $0.00 $1,400.00$1,600.00 $1,600.00Mileage 12.50%1-100-01-0102-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $350.00$350.00 $350.00Dues/Memberships 0.00%1-100-01-0102-810 $0.00

General Government01 $21,459.19 $0.00 $82,830.81 20.58%$104,290.00 $104,290.00 $0.00

$172.50 $0.00 $1,542.50$1,715.00 $1,715.00Board  Clerk Wages-BOF 10.06%1-100-01-0103-121 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00$5,000.00 $5,000.00Legal 0.00%1-100-01-0103-310 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $50.00$50.00 $50.00Office Supplies-BOF 0.00%1-100-01-0103-610 $0.00

General Government01 $172.50 $0.00 $6,592.50 2.55%$6,765.00 $6,765.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $32,000.00$32,000.00 $32,000.00Annual Audit-Auditor 0.00%1-100-01-0105-320 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Accounting Consultant 0.00%1-100-01-0105-322 $0.00

$5,075.00 $0.00 ($1,575.00)$3,500.00 $3,500.00Actuarial Services 145.00%1-100-01-0105-325 $0.00

General Government01 $5,075.00 $0.00 $30,425.00 14.30%$35,500.00 $35,500.00 $0.00

$2,250.00 $0.00 $16,750.00$19,000.00 $19,000.00Legal Retainer 11.84%1-100-01-0107-310 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00P & Z-Legal Counsel 0.00%1-100-01-0107-311 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00$6,000.00 $6,000.00Assessor - Legal Counsel 0.00%1-100-01-0107-312 $0.00

General Government01 $2,250.00 $0.00 $22,750.00 9.00%$25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00

$20,203.82 $0.00 $41,596.18$61,800.00 $61,800.00Salary-Treasurer 32.69%1-100-01-0109-100 $0.00

$9,200.40 $0.00 $19,187.60$28,388.00 $28,388.00Assistant Treasurer 32.41%1-100-01-0109-120 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00FY18 Treasurer Office Supplement 0.00%1-100-01-0109-155 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Conference/Seminars 0.00%1-100-01-0109-330 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Equip. Maint.-Treasurer 0.00%1-100-01-0109-438 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Mileage 0.00%1-100-01-0109-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00$2,000.00 $2,000.00Equipment-Treasurer 0.00%1-100-01-0109-609 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Computer Services 0.00%1-100-01-0109-735 $0.00

General Government01 $29,404.22 $0.00 $62,983.78 31.83%$92,388.00 $92,388.00 $0.00

Page 1



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$14,363.31 $0.00 $29,577.69$43,941.00 $43,941.00Salary-Tax Collector 32.69%1-100-01-0111-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $850.00$850.00 $850.00DMV Fees 0.00%1-100-01-0111-109 $0.00

$42.00 $0.00 $358.00$400.00 $400.00Conf. & Seminars-Tax Collector 10.50%1-100-01-0111-330 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Bounced Check Fee-Tax Collector 0.00%1-100-01-0111-371 $0.00

$7,801.65 $0.00 $698.35$8,500.00 $8,500.00Equip. Maint.-Tax Collector 91.78%1-100-01-0111-438 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $150.00$150.00 $150.00Mileage-Tax Collector 0.00%1-100-01-0111-580 $0.00

$195.00 $0.00 $485.00$680.00 $680.00Office Supplies-Tax Collector 28.68%1-100-01-0111-610 $0.00

$20.00 $0.00 $80.00$100.00 $100.00MEMBERSHIP 20.00%1-100-01-0111-810 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Tax Collector-Equipment 0.00%1-100-01-0111-901 $0.00

General Government01 $22,421.96 $0.00 $32,699.04 40.68%$55,121.00 $55,121.00 $0.00

$9,276.21 $0.00 $19,097.79$28,374.00 $28,374.00Salary-Assessor 32.69%1-100-01-0113-100 $0.00

$11,363.50 $0.00 $23,401.50$34,765.00 $34,765.00Salary-Asst. Assessor 32.69%1-100-01-0113-120 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $610.00$610.00 $610.00Training/Assessor 0.00%1-100-01-0113-335 $0.00

$13,962.00 $0.00 $2,200.00$16,162.00 $16,162.00Software-Assessor 86.39%1-100-01-0113-438 $0.00

$55.92 $0.00 $444.08$500.00 $500.00Mileage-Assessor 11.18%1-100-01-0113-580 $0.00

$192.50 $0.00 $207.50$400.00 $400.00Office Supplies-Assessor 48.13%1-100-01-0113-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $450.00$450.00 $450.00Books / Subs.-Assessor 0.00%1-100-01-0113-612 $0.00

General Government01 $34,850.13 $0.00 $46,410.87 42.89%$81,261.00 $81,261.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $656.00$656.00 $656.00Salaries-BAA 0.00%1-100-01-0115-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00BAA-Clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0115-120 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $150.00$150.00 $150.00BAA-Training 0.00%1-100-01-0115-335 $0.00

General Government01 $0.00 $0.00 $906.00 0.00%$906.00 $906.00 $0.00

$15,277.56 $0.00 $31,453.44$46,731.00 $46,731.00Salary-Town Clerk 32.69%1-100-01-0117-100 $0.00

$6,520.32 $0.00 $15,419.68$21,940.00 $21,940.00Asst. Salary-Town Clerk 29.72%1-100-01-0117-120 $0.00

$430.00 $0.00 $570.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Conf. / Seminars-Town Clerk 43.00%1-100-01-0117-330 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Training-Town clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0117-335 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $540.00$540.00 $540.00Equip. Maint.-Town Clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0117-438 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Mileage-Town Clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0117-580 $0.00

$35.07 $0.00 $1,364.93$1,400.00 $1,400.00Office Supplies-Town Clerk 2.51%1-100-01-0117-610 $0.00

$2,568.60 $0.00 $7,531.40$10,100.00 $10,100.00Land Records-Town Clerk 25.43%1-100-01-0117-612 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $600.00$600.00 $600.00Maps Fiming & Indexing-Town Clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0117-616 $0.00

$40.00 $0.00 $460.00$500.00 $500.00Dues / Memberships-Town Clerk 8.00%1-100-01-0117-810 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $300.00$300.00 $300.00Vital Statistics-Town Clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0117-865 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Restoration-Town Clerk 0.00%1-100-01-0117-885 $0.00

General Government01 $24,871.55 $0.00 $60,739.45 29.05%$85,611.00 $85,611.00 $0.00

$3,054.00 $0.00 $0.00$3,054.00 $3,054.00Misc. Expenses-Probate Court 100.00%1-100-01-0119-800 $0.00

General Government01 $3,054.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%$3,054.00 $3,054.00 $0.00

$991.44 $0.00 $13,103.56$14,095.00 $14,095.00Salaries-Elections 7.03%1-100-01-0121-100 $0.00

$131.84 $0.00 $418.16$550.00 $550.00Training - Elections 23.97%1-100-01-0121-335 $0.00

Page 2



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$600.00 $0.00 $2,400.00$3,000.00 $3,000.00Equip. Maint.-Elections 20.00%1-100-01-0121-438 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00$7,000.00 $7,000.00Supplies-Elections 0.00%1-100-01-0121-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $120.00$120.00 $120.00MISC/CANV 0.00%1-100-01-0121-800 $0.00

$48.28 $0.00 $501.72$550.00 $550.00Meals-Elections 8.78%1-100-01-0121-830 $0.00

General Government01 $1,771.56 $0.00 $23,543.44 7.00%$25,315.00 $25,315.00 $0.00

$420.15 $0.00 $2,779.85$3,200.00 $3,200.00Building Maint.- Old Town Hall 13.13%1-100-01-0123-432 $0.00

$393.55 $0.00 $406.45$800.00 $800.00Alarm System-Old Town Hall 49.19%1-100-01-0123-490 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Telephone-Old Town Hall 0.00%1-100-01-0123-530 $0.00

$193.30 $0.00 $376.70$570.00 $570.00Electricity-Old Town Hall 33.91%1-100-01-0123-601 $0.00

$19.94 $0.00 $380.06$400.00 $400.00Fuel Oil-Old Town Hall 4.99%1-100-01-0123-603 $0.00

General Government01 $1,026.94 $0.00 $3,943.06 20.66%$4,970.00 $4,970.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $7,712.00$7,712.00 $7,712.00Salary-Registrars 0.00%1-100-01-0125-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $800.00$800.00 $800.00Asst. Salary-Registrars 0.00%1-100-01-0125-120 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00$1,200.00 $1,200.00CONF & SEMINARS 0.00%1-100-01-0125-330 $0.00

$120.00 $0.00 $3,380.00$3,500.00 $3,500.00Registrar-Training 3.43%1-100-01-0125-335 $0.00

$59.16 $0.00 $440.84$500.00 $500.00Mileage-Registrars 11.83%1-100-01-0125-580 $0.00

$11.50 $0.00 $588.50$600.00 $600.00Office Supplies-Registrars 1.92%1-100-01-0125-610 $0.00

$170.00 $0.00 $30.00$200.00 $200.00Dues / Memberships-Registrars 85.00%1-100-01-0125-810 $0.00

General Government01 $360.66 $0.00 $14,151.34 2.49%$14,512.00 $14,512.00 $0.00

$1,738.89 $0.00 $3,761.11$5,500.00 $5,500.00Legal Ads-Advertising 31.62%1-100-01-0127-540 $0.00

General Government01 $1,738.89 $0.00 $3,761.11 31.62%$5,500.00 $5,500.00 $0.00

$1,384.78 $0.00 $5,800.22$7,185.00 $7,185.00Payroll Service-Town Office 19.27%1-100-01-0129-315 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00CONFERENCES & SEMINARS 0.00%1-100-01-0129-330 $0.00

$98.00 $0.00 $402.00$500.00 $500.00Water Testing 19.60%1-100-01-0129-350 $0.00

$2,203.20 $0.00 $196.80$2,400.00 $2,400.00Elevator-Service Contract 91.80%1-100-01-0129-365 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $240.00$240.00 $240.00Elevator Permit 0.00%1-100-01-0129-401 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00ProComm.Maint. Agr.-Town Office Building 0.00%1-100-01-0129-430 $0.00

$109.20 $0.00 $3,390.80$3,500.00 $3,500.00Building Maint.-Town Office Building 3.12%1-100-01-0129-432 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Furnace Maint,-Town Office Building 0.00%1-100-01-0129-434 $0.00

$2,669.51 $0.00 $1,330.49$4,000.00 $4,000.00Software Maint.-Town Office Building 66.74%1-100-01-0129-439 $0.00

$2,250.00 $0.00 $5,750.00$8,000.00 $8,000.00Computer Tech Support 28.13%1-100-01-0129-442 $0.00

$971.59 $0.00 $1,628.41$2,600.00 $2,600.00Copier Rental-Town Office 37.37%1-100-01-0129-444 $0.00

$250.00 $0.00 $50.00$300.00 $300.00Alarm System-Town Office 83.33%1-100-01-0129-490 $0.00

$10,068.80 $0.00 $0.20$10,069.00 $10,069.00TN 911 99.99%1-100-01-0129-493 $0.00

$5,102.50 $0.00 $5,497.50$10,600.00 $10,600.00Telephone-Town Office Building 48.14%1-100-01-0129-530 $0.00

$2,448.43 $0.00 $5,051.57$7,500.00 $7,500.00Postage-Town Office 32.65%1-100-01-0129-531 $0.00

$150.00 $0.00 $450.00$600.00 $600.00Postage Meter Rental-Town Office 25.00%1-100-01-0129-533 $0.00

$559.25 $0.00 $1,090.75$1,650.00 $1,650.00Internet Cable-Office Building 33.89%1-100-01-0129-537 $0.00

$604.78 $0.00 $795.22$1,400.00 $1,400.00Printing-Town Office Building 43.20%1-100-01-0129-550 $0.00

Page 3



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$3,075.69 $0.00 $4,624.31$7,700.00 $7,700.00Electricty-Town Office Building 39.94%1-100-01-0129-601 $0.00

$607.35 $0.00 $4,392.65$5,000.00 $5,000.00Fuel Oil-Town Office Building 12.15%1-100-01-0129-603 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00$1,500.00 $1,500.00Equipment-Town Office Building 0.00%1-100-01-0129-609 $0.00

$1,670.84 $0.00 $329.16$2,000.00 $2,000.00Office Supplies-Town Office Building 83.54%1-100-01-0129-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $600.00$600.00 $600.00Office Furniture 0.00%1-100-01-0129-611 $0.00

$214.46 $0.00 $785.54$1,000.00 $1,000.00Janitorial Supplies-Town Office Building 21.45%1-100-01-0129-652 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Computer Repl. & Service Town Office 0.00%1-100-01-0129-735 $0.00

General Government01 $34,438.38 $0.00 $45,405.62 43.13%$79,844.00 $79,844.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Adm. Asst. Salary 0.00%1-100-01-0131-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Wages-Administrative Asst I 0.00%1-100-01-0131-140 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Wages-Administrative Asst II 0.00%1-100-01-0131-141 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Wages-Administrative Asst III 0.00%1-100-01-0131-142 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Web Site 0.00%1-100-01-0131-360 $0.00

General Government01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Dog Damage 0.00%1-100-01-0133-815 $0.00

General Government01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $515.00$515.00 $515.00Salary-Civil Preparedness 0.00%1-100-01-0135-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $350.00$350.00 $350.00Civil Preparedness Training 0.00%1-100-01-0135-335 $0.00

$157.26 $0.00 $842.74$1,000.00 $1,000.00Vehicle Maintenance 15.73%1-100-01-0135-435 $0.00

$277.69 $0.00 $472.31$750.00 $750.00Mobil Phone-Civil Prep 37.03%1-100-01-0135-535 $0.00

General Government01 $434.95 $0.00 $2,180.05 16.63%$2,615.00 $2,615.00 $0.00

$63,731.00 $0.00 $45,521.00$109,252.00 $109,252.00Insurance 58.33%1-100-01-0137-500 $0.00

General Government01 $63,731.00 $0.00 $45,521.00 58.33%$109,252.00 $109,252.00 $0.00

$14,490.42 $0.00 $32,009.58$46,500.00 $46,500.00Social Security-Employee Benefits 31.16%1-100-01-0141-205 $0.00

$3,388.82 $0.00 $7,411.18$10,800.00 $10,800.00Medicare-Employee Benefits 31.38%1-100-01-0141-207 $0.00

$1,617.68 $0.00 $5,882.32$7,500.00 $7,500.00Unempl. Comp.-Employee Benefits 21.57%1-100-01-0141-210 $0.00

$83,029.00 $0.00 $121,971.00$205,000.00 $205,000.00Health Insurance-Employee Benefits 40.50%1-100-01-0141-215 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Dental-Employee Benefits 0.00%1-100-01-0141-220 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Longevity 0.00%1-100-01-0141-221 $0.00

$812.50 $0.00 $1,287.50$2,100.00 $2,100.00Disability-Employee Benefits 38.69%1-100-01-0141-223 $0.00

$697.29 $0.00 $502.71$1,200.00 $1,200.00Life Ins.-Employee Benefits 58.11%1-100-01-0141-225 $0.00

$23,880.94 $0.00 $56,119.06$80,000.00 $80,000.00Retirement-Employee Benefits 29.85%1-100-01-0141-230 $0.00

$539.00 $0.00 $1,961.00$2,500.00 $2,500.00Physicals-Employee Benefits 21.56%1-100-01-0141-280 $0.00

$131.00 $0.00 $0.00$131.00 $131.00Amort. Merf-Employee Benefits 100.00%1-100-01-0141-290 $0.00

$2,990.00 $0.00 $0.00$2,990.00 $2,990.00Adm. Fee Merf.-Employee Benefits 100.00%1-100-01-0141-295 $0.00

General Government01 $131,576.65 $0.00 $227,144.35 36.68%$358,721.00 $358,721.00 $0.00

$5,633.71 $0.00 $9,473.29$15,107.00 $15,107.00Salaries-Drivers/Dispatch 37.29%1-100-01-0143-100 $0.00

$300.00 $0.00 $700.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Comm. Drivers Test-Dial a Ride 30.00%1-100-01-0143-380 $0.00

Page 4



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$1,639.25 $0.00 $1,360.75$3,000.00 $3,000.00Vehicle Maint.-Dial a Ride 54.64%1-100-01-0143-435 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Dial-A-Ride Mileage 0.00%1-100-01-0143-580 $0.00

$1,020.22 $0.00 $979.78$2,000.00 $2,000.00Fuel-Dial a Ride 51.01%1-100-01-0143-603 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Oil-Dial a Ride 0.00%1-100-01-0143-630 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Due / Memberships-Dial a Ride 0.00%1-100-01-0143-810 $0.00

General Government01 $8,593.18 $0.00 $12,513.82 40.71%$21,107.00 $21,107.00 $0.00

$220.52 $0.00 $2,044.48$2,265.00 $2,265.00Municipal Agent-Salary 9.74%1-100-01-0145-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Municipal Agent-Conferences 0.00%1-100-01-0145-330 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Postage-Senior Citizens 0.00%1-100-01-0145-531 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Internet Cable-Seniors Citizens 0.00%1-100-01-0145-537 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Municipal Agent-Mileage 0.00%1-100-01-0145-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Municipal Agent-Supplies 0.00%1-100-01-0145-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00McSweeney Center-Senior Citizens 0.00%1-100-01-0145-800 $0.00

$1,080.00 $0.00 $0.00$1,080.00 $1,080.00Senior Lunch-Senior Citizens 100.00%1-100-01-0145-820 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Municipal Agents-Senior Citizens 0.00%1-100-01-0145-840 $0.00

$1,375.00 $0.00 $625.00$2,000.00 $2,000.00Programs-Senior Citizens 68.75%1-100-01-0145-870 $0.00

$709.00 $0.00 $3,291.00$4,000.00 $4,000.00Trips-Senior Citizens 17.73%1-100-01-0145-875 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Equipment-Municipal Agent 0.00%1-100-01-0145-901 $0.00

General Government01 $3,384.52 $0.00 $5,960.48 36.22%$9,345.00 $9,345.00 $0.00

$2,955.00 $0.00 $7,045.00$10,000.00 $10,000.00Cleaning Service 29.55%1-100-01-0147-365 $0.00

General Government01 $2,955.00 $0.00 $7,045.00 29.55%$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Building Maint.-Old Fire House 0.00%1-100-01-0149-432 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $300.00$300.00 $300.00Furance Maint.-Old Fire House 0.00%1-100-01-0149-434 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $250.00$250.00 $250.00Alarm Maint.-Old Fire House 0.00%1-100-01-0149-490 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Telephone-Old Fire House 0.00%1-100-01-0149-530 $0.00

$379.92 $0.00 $1,820.08$2,200.00 $2,200.00Eletricity-Old Fire House 17.27%1-100-01-0149-601 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Fuel Oil-Old Fire House 0.00%1-100-01-0149-603 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Propane-Old Fire House 0.00%1-100-01-0149-605 $0.00

General Government01 $379.92 $0.00 $2,870.08 11.69%$3,250.00 $3,250.00 $0.00

$1,144.87 $0.00 $2,355.13$3,500.00 $3,500.00Dog Warden Salary-Dog Fund 32.71%1-100-01-0151-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $165.00$165.00 $165.00Furnace Maintenance - Dog Pound 0.00%1-100-01-0151-434 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $400.00$400.00 $400.00Dog Warden-Mileage 0.00%1-100-01-0151-580 $0.00

$273.90 $0.00 $476.10$750.00 $750.00Dog Warden - Supplies 36.52%1-100-01-0151-610 $0.00

General Government01 $1,418.77 $0.00 $3,396.23 29.47%$4,815.00 $4,815.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Historical Society 0.00%1-100-01-0153-800 $0.00

General Government01 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00%$200.00 $200.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00TOWN ETHICS COMMISSION 0.00%1-100-01-0155-800 $0.00

General Government01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Page 5



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$8,802.08 $0.00 $8,797.92$17,600.00 $17,600.00Health Director 50.01%1-100-02-0201-841 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00EASTERN HIGHLANDS HEALTH 0.00%1-100-02-0201-999 $0.00

Conservation02 $8,802.08 $0.00 $8,797.92 50.01%$17,600.00 $17,600.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $250.00$250.00 $250.00Visinting Nurse Assoc. 0.00%1-100-02-0203-842 $0.00

Conservation02 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00%$250.00 $250.00 $0.00

$231.00 $0.00 $0.00$231.00 $231.00N.C. Mental Health 100.00%1-100-02-0205-843 $0.00

Conservation02 $231.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%$231.00 $231.00 $0.00

$20,729.60 $0.00 $20,773.40$41,503.00 $41,503.00AHM Youth Services 49.95%1-100-02-0207-844 $0.00

Conservation02 $20,729.60 $0.00 $20,773.40 49.95%$41,503.00 $41,503.00 $0.00

$54,774.02 $0.00 $114,058.98$168,833.00 $168,833.00Salary-Public Works 32.44%1-100-03-0301-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00$5,000.00 $5,000.00Temp/PW 0.00%1-100-03-0301-111 $0.00

$246.11 $0.00 $2,253.89$2,500.00 $2,500.00Overtime/PW 9.84%1-100-03-0301-112 $0.00

$5,510.00 $0.00 $4,490.00$10,000.00 $10,000.00Tree Removal-Public Works Department 55.10%1-100-03-0301-390 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $600.00$600.00 $600.00Fire Ext. Ck.-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-391 $0.00

$178.70 $0.00 $671.30$850.00 $850.00Welding Supply-Public Works 21.02%1-100-03-0301-392 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $600.00$600.00 $600.00Tires Maint.-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-431 $0.00

$14,549.97 $0.00 ($2,549.97)$12,000.00 $12,000.00Vehicle Maint.Public Works 121.25%1-100-03-0301-435 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Sweeper Exp.-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-437 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $700.00$700.00 $700.00Misc. Labor/Rental-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0301-448 $0.00

$231.21 $0.00 $168.79$400.00 $400.00Mobile Phone-Public Works 57.80%1-100-03-0301-535 $0.00

$5,734.12 $0.00 $14,265.88$20,000.00 $20,000.00Diesel-Public Works 28.67%1-100-03-0301-602 $0.00

$700.85 $0.00 $3,299.15$4,000.00 $4,000.00Fuel-Public Works 17.52%1-100-03-0301-603 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $950.00$950.00 $950.00Brooms-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-620 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00$1,500.00 $1,500.00Tires-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-622 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Lub Oils Engine-Public Works Department 0.00%1-100-03-0301-630 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Trans. Oil-Public Works Department 0.00%1-100-03-0301-632 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00$1,500.00 $1,500.00Filters/antifreeze-Public Works Department 0.00%1-100-03-0301-633 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $130.00$130.00 $130.00Grease-Public Works Department 0.00%1-100-03-0301-634 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00J.D. Oil-Public Works Department 0.00%1-100-03-0301-635 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Hyd. Oil-Public Works Department 0.00%1-100-03-0301-636 $0.00

$515.74 $0.00 $234.26$750.00 $750.00Fuel Add.-Public Works Department 68.77%1-100-03-0301-637 $0.00

$1,154.93 $0.00 $1,445.07$2,600.00 $2,600.00Shop Supplies-Public Works 44.42%1-100-03-0301-638 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Sweeper Supplies-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-640 $0.00

$842.74 $0.00 $1,857.26$2,700.00 $2,700.00Uniforms & Shoes-Town Garage 31.21%1-100-03-0301-654 $0.00

$55.00 $0.00 $945.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Radios-Public Works 5.50%1-100-03-0301-730 $0.00

$399.00 $0.00 $1,751.00$2,150.00 $2,150.00Signs-Public works 18.56%1-100-03-0301-732 $0.00

$39.99 $0.00 $2,660.01$2,700.00 $2,700.00Tools-Public Works 1.48%1-100-03-0301-734 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Dues/ Memberships-Public Works 0.00%1-100-03-0301-810 $0.00

Public Works03 $84,932.38 $0.00 $157,630.62 35.01%$242,563.00 $242,563.00 $0.00

Page 6



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00$20,000.00 $20,000.00Overtime Wages-Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-130 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Contracted Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-365 $0.00

$400.00 $0.00 $0.00$400.00 $400.00Ice Maint. Bldg.--Snow Removal 100.00%1-100-03-0303-436 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Paint-Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-624 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $2,400.00$2,400.00 $2,400.00Plow Blades-Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-642 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Sanding Equip-Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-643 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $24,000.00$24,000.00 $24,000.00Sand-Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-644 $0.00

$84.12 $0.00 $39,915.88$40,000.00 $40,000.00Salt-Snow Removal 0.21%1-100-03-0303-646 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $650.00$650.00 $650.00Meals-Snow Removal 0.00%1-100-03-0303-830 $0.00

Public Works03 $484.12 $0.00 $88,065.88 0.55%$88,550.00 $88,550.00 $0.00

$2,334.78 $0.00 $5,165.22$7,500.00 $7,500.00Street Lighting 31.13%1-100-03-0305-410 $0.00

Public Works03 $2,334.78 $0.00 $5,165.22 31.13%$7,500.00 $7,500.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Road Maintenance-Town Aid Roads 0.00%1-100-03-0307-451 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Times Farms Rd Bridge 0.00%1-100-03-0307-716 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Town Aid Roads 0.00%1-100-03-0307-999 $0.00

Public Works03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $600.00$600.00 $600.00Medical / Drug-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0309-215 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Conf/Seminars-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0309-330 $0.00

$855.00 $0.00 $3,145.00$4,000.00 $4,000.00Building Maint.-Town Garage 21.38%1-100-03-0309-432 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $700.00$700.00 $700.00Furnance Maint.-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0309-434 $0.00

$250.00 $0.00 $50.00$300.00 $300.00Alarm Systems-Town Garage 83.33%1-100-03-0309-490 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Telephone-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0309-530 $0.00

$463.40 $0.00 $736.60$1,200.00 $1,200.00Internet Cable-Town Garage 38.62%1-100-03-0309-537 $0.00

$901.03 $0.00 $2,698.97$3,600.00 $3,600.00Electricity-Town Garage 25.03%1-100-03-0309-601 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $5,100.00$5,100.00 $5,100.00Fuel Oil-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0309-603 $0.00

$86.91 $0.00 $13.09$100.00 $100.00Office Supplies-Town Garage 86.91%1-100-03-0309-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $150.00$150.00 $150.00Computer Supplies-Town Garage 0.00%1-100-03-0309-618 $0.00

Public Works03 $2,556.34 $0.00 $13,193.66 16.23%$15,750.00 $15,750.00 $0.00

$977.50 $0.00 $5,022.50$6,000.00 $6,000.00Consulting Fees-Engineer 16.29%1-100-03-0311-370 $0.00

Public Works03 $977.50 $0.00 $5,022.50 16.29%$6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00

$9,771.64 $0.00 $4,228.36$14,000.00 $14,000.00Mowing-Ground Care 69.80%1-100-03-0313-420 $0.00

$292.47 $0.00 $1,207.53$1,500.00 $1,500.00Beautifications-Ground Care 19.50%1-100-03-0313-422 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00$1,500.00 $1,500.00Old Cemetary - Maintenance 0.00%1-100-03-0313-424 $0.00

Public Works03 $10,064.11 $0.00 $6,935.89 59.20%$17,000.00 $17,000.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Board Clerk Wages 0.00%1-100-04-0401-121 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Equip. Maint.-Fire Department 0.00%1-100-04-0401-438 $0.00

$68,325.00 $0.00 $68,325.00$136,650.00 $136,650.00Fire Department 50.00%1-100-04-0401-800 $0.00

Public Safety04 $68,325.00 $0.00 $68,325.00 50.00%$136,650.00 $136,650.00 $0.00

Page 7



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Overtime-Law Enforcement 0.00%1-100-04-0403-130 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $175,356.00$175,356.00 $175,356.00Contract St. Fee-Law Enforcement 0.00%1-100-04-0403-375 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Mobile Phone / Pager-Law Enforcement 0.00%1-100-04-0403-535 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Office Supplies-Law Enforcement 0.00%1-100-04-0403-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Dues/Fees-Law Enforcement 0.00%1-100-04-0403-810 $0.00

$70.00 $0.00 $130.00$200.00 $200.00Office Equipment-Law Enforcement 35.00%1-100-04-0403-901 $0.00

Public Safety04 $70.00 $0.00 $175,486.00 0.04%$175,556.00 $175,556.00 $0.00

$2,451.91 $0.00 $5,048.09$7,500.00 $7,500.00Salary - Fire Marshall 32.69%1-100-04-0405-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00$1,200.00 $1,200.00Deputy Salary 0.00%1-100-04-0405-110 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Training-Fire Marshall 0.00%1-100-04-0405-335 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $120.00$120.00 $120.00Pager / PHONE-Fire Marshall 0.00%1-100-04-0405-535 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $50.00$50.00 $50.00Office Supplies-Fire Marshall 0.00%1-100-04-0405-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $700.00$700.00 $700.00Subscriptions/Fire Marshall 0.00%1-100-04-0405-612 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $125.00$125.00 $125.00Dues / Memberships-Fire Marshall 0.00%1-100-04-0405-810 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Equipment-Fire Marshall 0.00%1-100-04-0405-901 $0.00

Public Safety04 $2,451.91 $0.00 $7,943.09 23.59%$10,395.00 $10,395.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $800.00$800.00 $800.00Social Worker Sal.-Welfare 0.00%1-100-05-0501-100 $0.00

$118.11 $0.00 $231.89$350.00 $350.00Social Services Phone 33.75%1-100-05-0501-530 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $50.00$50.00 $50.00Social Services-Mileage 0.00%1-100-05-0501-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $250.00$250.00 $250.00Food & Clothing 0.00%1-100-05-0501-830 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $150.00$150.00 $150.00Social Services-ACCESS 0.00%1-100-05-0501-845 $0.00

Public Welfare05 $118.11 $0.00 $1,481.89 7.38%$1,600.00 $1,600.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $800.00$800.00 $800.00Misc. Exp-Memorial Day 0.00%1-100-06-0601-800 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Memorial Day Comm. 0.00%1-100-06-0601-835 $0.00

Recreation06 $0.00 $0.00 $800.00 0.00%$800.00 $800.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Outside Maintenance-Recreation Comm 0.00%1-100-06-0603-436 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $2,630.00$2,630.00 $2,630.00Outside Facility-Recreation Comm 0.00%1-100-06-0603-493 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Electricity - Recreation 0.00%1-100-06-0603-601 $0.00

$2,590.79 $0.00 $3,244.21$5,835.00 $5,835.00Programs-Recreation Comm 44.40%1-100-06-0603-870 $0.00

Recreation06 $2,590.79 $0.00 $5,874.21 30.61%$8,465.00 $8,465.00 $0.00

$6,674.41 $0.00 $13,325.59$20,000.00 $20,000.00Wages-Transfer Station 33.37%1-100-07-0701-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Water Testing-Transfer Station 0.00%1-100-07-0701-350 $0.00

$81.40 $0.00 $4,718.60$4,800.00 $4,800.00Maintence-Transfer Station 1.70%1-100-07-0701-438 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $7,500.00$7,500.00 $7,500.00Brush Pile Removal 0.00%1-100-07-0701-442 $0.00

$12,585.33 $0.00 $27,414.67$40,000.00 $40,000.00Hauling Fees-Transfer Station 31.46%1-100-07-0701-480 $0.00

$11,819.98 $0.00 $13,180.02$25,000.00 $25,000.00Bulky Waste-Transfer Station 47.28%1-100-07-0701-481 $0.00

$375.00 $0.00 $525.00$900.00 $900.00Outdoor Facility-Transfer Station 41.67%1-100-07-0701-493 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Telephone-Transfer Station 0.00%1-100-07-0701-530 $0.00

$52.78 $0.00 ($52.78)$0.00 $0.00Transfer Station-Mileage 0.00%1-100-07-0701-580 $0.00

Page 8



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$555.05 $0.00 $2,144.95$2,700.00 $2,700.00Electricity-Transfer Station 20.56%1-100-07-0701-601 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Transfer Station 0.00%1-100-07-0701-800 $0.00

$1,250.00 $0.00 $1,750.00$3,000.00 $3,000.00Compactor Lease Transfer Station 41.67%1-100-07-0701-803 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Dues / Membership-Transfer Station 0.00%1-100-07-0701-810 $0.00

$14,752.01 $0.00 $40,247.99$55,000.00 $55,000.00Tipping Fees-Transfer Station 26.82%1-100-07-0701-998 $0.00

Sanitation and Waste07 $48,145.96 $0.00 $110,954.04 30.26%$159,100.00 $159,100.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Hazardous Waste-Recycling 0.00%1-100-07-0703-482 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Antifreeze Pickup-Recycling 0.00%1-100-07-0703-484 $0.00

$104.50 $0.00 $395.50$500.00 $500.00Used Oil Pickup-Recycling 20.90%1-100-07-0703-485 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Freon Removal-Recycling 0.00%1-100-07-0703-486 $0.00

$571.50 $0.00 ($21.50)$550.00 $550.00Tire Pickup-Recycling 103.91%1-100-07-0703-488 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Oil Filters-Recycling 0.00%1-100-07-0703-631 $0.00

$800.00 $0.00 $0.00$800.00 $800.00Transfer Station-Permits 100.00%1-100-07-0703-807 $0.00

$151.72 $0.00 $348.28$500.00 $500.00Dues / Memb.-Recycling 30.34%1-100-07-0703-810 $0.00

Sanitation and Waste07 $1,627.72 $0.00 $922.28 63.83%$2,550.00 $2,550.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Economic Development Comm. 0.00%1-100-08-0801-800 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Economic Development Comm. 0.00%1-100-08-0801-999 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00%$500.00 $500.00 $0.00

$157.50 $0.00 $1,192.50$1,350.00 $1,350.00Wages-Planning & Zoning 11.67%1-100-08-0803-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Board Clerk - PZC 0.00%1-100-08-0803-115 $0.00

$625.00 $0.00 $4,375.00$5,000.00 $5,000.00Legal/Professional P&Z 12.50%1-100-08-0803-310 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Contract Planner 0.00%1-100-08-0803-320 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $350.00$350.00 $350.00Training-Planning & Zoning 0.00%1-100-08-0803-335 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Planning & Zoning - Mapping 0.00%1-100-08-0803-340 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Office Supplies-Planning & Zoning 0.00%1-100-08-0803-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $110.00$110.00 $110.00Dues / Memberships-Planning & Zoning 0.00%1-100-08-0803-810 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $782.50 $0.00 $6,227.50 11.16%$7,010.00 $7,010.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Wages-Zoning Board of Appeals 0.00%1-100-08-0805-100 $0.00

$180.00 $0.00 $320.00$500.00 $500.00Board Clerk - ZBA 36.00%1-100-08-0805-115 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Supplies 0.00%1-100-08-0805-610 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $180.00 $0.00 $420.00 30.00%$600.00 $600.00 $0.00

$2,574.11 $0.00 $5,785.89$8,360.00 $8,360.00Wages - Building Department 30.79%1-100-08-0807-100 $0.00

$10,860.89 $0.00 $23,369.11$34,230.00 $34,230.00Clerk's Wages-Building Department 31.73%1-100-08-0807-120 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $300.00$300.00 $300.00Substitute Coverage 0.00%1-100-08-0807-285 $0.00

$85.00 $0.00 ($10.00)$75.00 $75.00Conf. / Seminars-Building Department 113.33%1-100-08-0807-330 $0.00

$434.00 $0.00 $466.00$900.00 $900.00Equipment maint.-Building Dept. 48.22%1-100-08-0807-438 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00LAND USE FEES/STATE 0.00%1-100-08-0807-455 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00$500.00 $500.00Mileage-Building Department 0.00%1-100-08-0807-580 $0.00

$204.71 $0.00 $295.29$500.00 $500.00Office Supplies-Building Department 40.94%1-100-08-0807-610 $0.00

Page 9



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00Bks. &  Manuals-Building Department 0.00%1-100-08-0807-612 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $155.00$155.00 $155.00Dues / Membership-Building Department 0.00%1-100-08-0807-810 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $250.00$250.00 $250.00Building Dept.-Equipment 0.00%1-100-08-0807-901 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $14,158.71 $0.00 $32,111.29 30.60%$46,270.00 $46,270.00 $0.00

$2,531.49 $0.00 $2,068.51$4,600.00 $4,600.00Wages-Inland/Wetlands 55.03%1-100-08-0809-100 $0.00

$363.75 $0.00 $636.25$1,000.00 $1,000.00Board Clerk - IWC 36.38%1-100-08-0809-115 $0.00

$75.00 $0.00 ($75.00)$0.00 $0.00Training-Inland/Wetlands 0.00%1-100-08-0809-335 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Water Testing-Wetlands 0.00%1-100-08-0809-350 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Purchased Services-Inland/Wetlands 0.00%1-100-08-0809-365 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $300.00$300.00 $300.00Mileage-Wetlands 0.00%1-100-08-0809-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $50.00$50.00 $50.00Office Supplies-Inland/Wetland 0.00%1-100-08-0809-610 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Maps-Inland/Wetlands 0.00%1-100-08-0809-614 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Inland Wetland Comm. 0.00%1-100-08-0809-800 $0.00

$65.00 $0.00 ($65.00)$0.00 $0.00Dues / Memberships-Inland/Wetlands 0.00%1-100-08-0809-810 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $3,035.24 $0.00 $2,914.76 51.01%$5,950.00 $5,950.00 $0.00

$65.00 $0.00 ($65.00)$0.00 $0.00Conservation-membership 0.00%1-100-08-0815-330 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $200.00$200.00 $200.00Conservation-training 0.00%1-100-08-0815-335 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $100.00$100.00 $100.00Conservation-equipment 0.00%1-100-08-0815-609 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Conservation Commission 0.00%1-100-08-0815-800 $0.00

$65.00 $0.00 $235.00$300.00 $300.00Conservation-conferences 21.67%1-100-08-0815-810 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Conservation - POCD Implementation 0.00%1-100-08-0815-811 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Conservation - Trail Maintenance 0.00%1-100-08-0815-813 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $130.00 $0.00 $470.00 21.67%$600.00 $600.00 $0.00

$2,964.61 $0.00 $7,635.39$10,600.00 $10,600.00Salary-Zoning Agent 27.97%1-100-08-0817-100 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Mileage-Zoning Agent 0.00%1-100-08-0817-580 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Office Supplies-Zoning Agent 0.00%1-100-08-0817-610 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $2,964.61 $0.00 $7,635.39 27.97%$10,600.00 $10,600.00 $0.00

$7,861.00 $0.00 $0.00$7,861.00 $7,861.00Capital Region Council of Govt. 100.00%1-100-08-0819-810 $0.00

Planning and Land Use08 $7,861.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%$7,861.00 $7,861.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Education-RHAM/AES Retirment Ben 0.00%1-100-09-0901-527 $0.00

$1,622,019.00 $0.00 $3,268,604.00$4,890,623.00 $4,890,623.00RHAM Payment 33.17%1-100-09-0901-590 $0.00

$932,838.75 $0.00 $3,132,161.25$4,065,000.00 $4,065,000.00Board of Education Expenses 22.95%1-100-09-0901-595 $0.00

Education09 $2,554,857.75 $0.00 $6,400,765.25 28.53%$8,955,623.00 $8,955,623.00 $0.00

$23,177.17 $0.00 $48,622.83$71,800.00 $71,800.00Library Payroll 32.28%1-100-10-1001-100 $0.00

$13,039.50 $0.00 $13,039.50$26,079.00 $26,079.00Library 50.00%1-100-10-1001-800 $0.00

Library10 $36,216.67 $0.00 $61,662.33 37.00%$97,879.00 $97,879.00 $0.00

$24,600.00 $0.00 $175,400.00$200,000.00 $200,000.00Road Improvement 12.30%1-100-11-1101-451 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Old Fire House-Capital Funds 0.00%1-100-11-1101-700 $0.00

Page 10



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

$0.00 $0.00 $32,615.00$32,615.00 $32,615.00Town Garage-Capital Expenditure 0.00%1-100-11-1101-701 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Highway Dept-Capital Expenditure 0.00%1-100-11-1101-702 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Fire Dept.-Capital Expenditure 0.00%1-100-11-1101-703 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Old Town Hall-Capital 0.00%1-100-11-1101-704 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Library-Capital Expenditure 0.00%1-100-11-1101-707 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Revaluation 0.00%1-100-11-1101-714 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00P & Z-Capital POCD 0.00%1-100-11-1101-715 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Reval Printer, Software-Capital Expenditures 0.00%1-100-11-1101-717 $0.00

$192,679.34 $0.00 ($192,679.34)$0.00 $0.00Public Work-Capital Expenditures 0.00%1-100-11-1101-718 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Town Clerk - Wide Format Printer 0.00%1-100-11-1101-719 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Senior-Capital 0.00%1-100-11-1101-720 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00AES CAPITAL 0.00%1-100-11-1101-721 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Open Space Commitments 0.00%1-100-11-1101-722 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Pedestrian Bridge Improvements 0.00%1-100-11-1101-723 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00$25,000.00 $25,000.00Transfer Station Shed 0.00%1-100-11-1101-724 $0.00

$38,363.98 $0.00 $636.02$39,000.00 $39,000.00F250 Plow Truck 99.99%1-100-11-1101-725 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Severance 0.00%1-100-11-1101-861 $0.00

Capital Outlay11 $255,643.32 $0.00 $40,971.68 86.19%$296,615.00 $296,615.00 $0.00

$90,000.00 $0.00 $0.00$90,000.00 $90,000.00School-Debt 100.00%1-100-12-1201-960 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Safety Complex-Debt 0.00%1-100-12-1201-961 $0.00

Debt Service12 $90,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%$90,000.00 $90,000.00 $0.00

$6,491.25 $0.00 $4,353.75$10,845.00 $10,845.00School Interest-Interest 59.85%1-100-12-1203-950 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Safety Complex Interest-Interest 0.00%1-100-12-1203-951 $0.00

Debt Service12 $6,491.25 $0.00 $4,353.75 59.85%$10,845.00 $10,845.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Insurance Severance 0.00%1-100-13-1305-860 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00POCD Implementation Fund 0.00%1-100-13-1305-890 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Community Improvement Fund 0.00%1-100-13-1305-891 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Working Capital 0.00%1-100-13-1305-898 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00$50,000.00 $50,000.00Contingency 0.00%1-100-13-1305-899 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Recloass of transfers for Statement D 0.00%1-100-13-1305-900 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Town Owned Equipment 0.00%1-100-13-1305-901 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Resv. Non-Recurring-Capital Funds 0.00%1-100-13-1305-902 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Transfer - Remaining School Surplus 0.00%1-100-13-1305-905 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00 $0.00Transfer - Public Works Building 0.00%1-100-13-1305-906 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $250,000.00$250,000.00 $250,000.00Transfer - Multi Use Public Building 0.00%1-100-13-1305-907 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $412,000.00$412,000.00 $412,000.00Fire Engine/Tanker Truck 0.00%1-100-13-1305-908 $0.00

$7,350.33 $0.00 $17,649.67$25,000.00 $25,000.00Transfer Station Repair 29.40%1-100-13-1305-909 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00$20,000.00 $20,000.00Web Site 0.00%1-100-13-1305-910 $0.00

Transfers to other funds13 $7,350.33 $0.00 $749,649.67 0.97%$757,000.00 $757,000.00 $0.00

Page 11



11/27/2019

Orig Budget Adj Budget Ytd Expended PO Encumbered Balance %Exp

TOWN BUDGET SUMMARY

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

Non PO Encumb 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

General Fund - Town100 $3,630,213.38 $0.00 $8,737,944.62 29.35%$12,368,158.00 $12,368,158.00FUND $0.00

$3,630,213.38 $0.00 $8,737,944.62 29.35%$12,368,158.00 $12,368,158.00Grand Total for Report $0.00

Page 12



Town Aid Road

Fiscal Year 2018-2020

FY 2018-2019

Date Description misc

earthen 

materials Paving

basin 

cleaning

apron/ 

curbing

drainage 

related

hot and cold 

patch line striping

mastic      crack 

sealing guardrails Loader lease DOT grant YTD Bal

7/1/18 Beg Bal 302,820
8/9/18 (82)
8/9/18 East St reclaim (10,200)
8/9/18 East St paving (50,824)
8/9/18 East St paving (52,300)
8/9/18 93,726
8/30/18 washed stone (240)
9/13/18 (14,106) (4,582)
9/20/18 town and school (7,356)
9/26/18 process gravel (1,340)
10/10/18 (434)
10/24/18 process gravel (161)
11/7/18 (21,840)

12/19/18

East St/Lakeside 

Burnap Brk (24,622)
1/2/19 (184)
1/15/19 (4,500)
1/31/19 (842)
2/20/19 (4,500)
3/14/19 (4,500)
4/25/19 (368)
4/26/19 93,726
6/6/19 Townsend/Ryan (171,776)
6/20/19

6/20/19 grass seed (232)
6/20/19 process asphalt (1,162)
6/20/19 (12,973)
7/15/19 (504)
8/14/19 washed stone (1,135)

YTD spend (314) (285,100) (27,079) (7,356) (2,876) (3,494) (4,582) (21,840) (24,622) (13,500)
YTD rev 187,452
YTD bal 99,509



Town Aid Road

Fiscal Year 2018-2020

FY 2019-2020

Date Description misc

earthen 

materials* Paving

basin 

cleaning

apron/ 

curbing

drainage 

related

hot and cold 

patch line striping

mastic      crack 

sealing guardrails Loader lease DOT grant YTD Bal

7/1/18 Beg Bal 99,509
8/13/19 class 2 mix (394)
8/21/19 rd marking paint (51)
8/21/19 class 2 mix (154)
9/17/19 blades (723)
9/25/19 loam (334)
10/3/19 grass seed mix (324)
10/3/19 loam (334)
10/3/19 CES Engineering (1,381)
10/9/19 tarp, rope (107)
10/9/19 basin slab (180)
10/16/19 rip rap (945)
10/16/19 loam (98)
10/30/19 loam (334)
11/6/19 (183)
11/20/19 loam (625)

YTD spend (3,070) (2,369) 0 0 0 (180) (548) 0 0 0 0
YTD rev 0
YTD bal 93,343

*earthen materials:  loam, gravel, rip rap



General Ledger Detail

Andover Town & School 2019-2020

From 7/1/2019 To 11/27/2019  (Effective Date)

Transaction Description CreditsTran #Type Debits Balance

L-100-00-3700-006 11/27/2019

Fund 100 - General Fund - Town

Ven # Check #

Account Number Account Key Account Description

PO/Line

Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020

Effective Date

L-100-00-3700-006 DT/DF-Farm.-Town Aid RoadsL-100-00-3700-006 OldBal$99,509.35

0 $99,509.35

8/13/2019 Expend $393.70 / 020157552HAIN 373 CLASS 2 MIX $99,115.65

8/21/2019 Expend $50.88 / 02015759021364 482 ROAD MARKING PAINT $99,064.77

8/21/2019 Expend $77.50 / 020157577HAIN 505 CLASS 2 MIX $98,987.27

8/21/2019 Expend $76.73 / 020157577HAIN 506 CLASS 2 MIX $98,910.54

9/17/2019 Expend $723.00 / 02015762626578 705 BLADES $98,187.54

9/25/2019 Expend $334.00 / 020157679HAIN 794 SUNSET/TOWNSEND LOAM $97,853.54

10/3/2019 Expend $324.39 / 02015770821364 823 GRASS SEED MIX $97,529.15

10/3/2019 Expend $334.00 / 020157701HAIN 824 SCREENED LOAM $97,195.15

10/3/2019 Expend $1,381.25 / 0201576945529 831 SITE VISITS,MEETINGS $95,813.90

10/9/2019 Expend $106.95 / 020157722132 923 TARP, ROPE $95,706.95

10/9/2019 Expend $180.00 / 02015773221364 924 BASIN SLAB $95,526.95

10/16/2019 Expend $945.21 / 02015775510751 950 RIP RAP $94,581.74

10/16/2019 Expend $98.00 / 020157741HAIN 957 LOAM $94,483.74

10/30/2019 Expend $334.00 / 020157767HAIN 1000 LOAM $94,149.74

11/6/2019 Expend $183.15 / 02015779221364 1058 24" FLARED END SECTION $93,966.59

11/20/2019 Expend $624.65 / 020157820HAIN 1189 CLASS 2 MIX $93,341.94

End Bal$6,167.41 $0.00 $93,341.94

Page 1 of 1



Approved Policy for Overexpending Accounts 
 

 
 
Formally adopted on November 19, 2019 at the regular meeting of the Board of Finance 
 
This policy allows for overspending of accounts, but deferring till fiscal year end the completion and 
submission of a formal appropriation transfer request. 
 
 
 
When a budget line item will be overspent, the following procedure will be followed: 
 

If the total overspending of a budget is up to a cumulative amount of $2,000, the Department 
Head or Board/Commission Chair will complete a Request for Overexpenditure of Budget 
Appropriation* form and submit it to the Town Administrator who has the authority to approve 
these requests.  This limit also applies to budgets under the control of the Town Administrator 
who will also document via use of this same form. 
 
Requests which exceed the cumulative limit of $2000 but do not exceed $5,000 will be reviewed 
by the Town Administrator who shall forward such requests to the Board of Selectmen.  Upon 
concurrence, the Board of Selectmen will make a motion to approve.  This motion should 
denote account and maximum dollar amount that the account may be overspent. 
 
 All requests which exceed the cumulative limit of $5000 shall be reviewed by the Town 
Administrator and then the Board of Selectmen who shall forward such requests to the Board of 
Finance.  Approval will take the form of a motion that will denote account and maximum dollar 
amount.  

 
 An Overexpenditure Report*, maintained by the Treasurer’s Office, will track activity related to 
overspent accounts.  This spreadsheet will be included with Treasurer’s reports as part of both 
the BOS and BOF regular meeting agendas.  
 
Request for Budget Transfer/Supplemental Appropriation* form will be completed by fiscal year 
end for all overspent budget line items as described in Section 806 C of the Town Charter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Forms attached 



Town of Andover, Connecticut
Board of Finance

Overexpenditure Report

11/19/2019

Report date:

Account Description Original Adjusted

Department Budget # Comments Budget BOS $$ amt BOF $$ amt Mtg date Budget $$ % original % adjusted Budgeted Expended

Town office 0129-365 Elevator Service contract

building State mandated test not budgeted

DPW 0301-435 Vehical maint.

Large transmission repair

DPW 0309-490 Alarm system - town garage

ongoing maint. issues w/old system

transfer 0703-488 tire pick up - recycling

station underbudgeted

Auditor/ 0105-325 Actuarial Services

Actuary

IWC 0808-335 Training

CACIWC mtg/conf not budgeted

IWC 0809-810 Dues/Memberships

CACIWC membership not budgeted

Totals

Approval YTD expended Additional amount



Town of Andover, Connecticut
Board of Finance

Request for Budget Transfer/Supplemental Appropriation

Appropriation Transfer

Budget Account # Account Description Increase appropriation ($$) Decrease appropriation ($$)

Approval Name Signature Date

Dept Head/Board or 
Commission Chair

Town Administrator

Board of Selectmen                Meeting date:

Board of Finance                          
in excess of $2,000.00 Meeting date:

Supplemental Appropriation

Budget Account # Account Description $$ amount

Approval

Board of Selectmen Meeting date:

Board of Finance Meeting date:

Town Meeting                                  
if required Meeting date:



Town of Andover, Connecticut
Board of Finance

Request for Overexpenditure of Budget Appropriation

11/19/2019

Budget Account # Account Description Original Budget
Additional amount 
requested Comments

Approval Name Signature Date

Dept Head/Board or 
Commission Chair

Town Administrator

Board of Selectmen                Meeting date:

Board of Finance                          
in excess of $2,000.00 Meeting date:



 

November 26, 2019 

To: Board of Selectmen 

From: Barbara Griffin 

Re: Suggested schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 budget process 

 

I have put together a proposed budget schedule.  This pretty much follows the process used last year, 
but if you want to suggest any changes just let me know.  Otherwise, I will pass this along to the Board 
of Finance at their December meeting. 

Week of December 02, 2019:  Budget worksheets distributed to Department Heads, Board & 
Commission Chairs, and outside agencies. 

January 02, 2020:  Deadline to return completed budgets to Treasurer’s office. 

 January 6, 2020:  Distribute draft budget workbooks to Board of Selectmen members. 

January – February 2020:  BOS budget hearings on individual budgets.  

February 27, 2020:  Distribute budget workbooks, as approved by BOS, to Board of Finance members.  
This conforms to Charter requirement that budget requests be submitted to the Board of Finance at 
least 120 days before the end of the fiscal year.  

And, since the Charter requires a Finance Board public hearing on the budget not less than 60 days 
before the end of the fiscal year, this would give the Finance Board close to two months to review the 
budget.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 People's United Bank

Cash Accounts

Month ending: Bank Bank

October 31, 2019 Account # Balance GL Balance Difference

Municipal checking 5111 600,000.00 A-100-00-0000-990 600,000.00

Municipal interest checking 5096 3,788,064.35 A-100-00-0000-990 4,295,420.38 92,643.97

Open Space 5137 258,903.81 A-100-00-1980-001 L-100-00-2980-001 258,903.81 0.00

Driveway fund 5187 26,760.93 A-100-00-1949-001 L-100-00-3949-001 26,760.93 0.00

Equipment fund 5252 25,120.18 A-100-00-1949-002 L-100-00-3949-002 25,120.18 0.00

Fire Engine fund 5343 53,639.18 A-100-00-1949-003 L-100-00-3949-003 53,639.18 0.00

Irene Mooney 5567 11,772.74 A-100-00-1949-004 L-100-00-3949-004 11,772.74 0.00

Library fund 5575 181,785.67 A-100-00-1949-005 L-100-00-3949-005 181,785.67 0.00

Library grant 5608 508.80 A-100-00-1949-006 L-100-00-3949-006 508.80 0.00

Nonrecurring Reserve 5624 40,696.85 A-100-00-1949-007 L-100-00-3949-007 40,696.85 0.00

Norton Childrens fund 5632 14,230.14 A-100-00-1949-008 L-100-00-3949-008 14,230.14 0.00

Norton Library fund 5658 3,672.52 A-100-00-1949-009 L-100-00-3949-009 3,672.52 0.00

Norton School fund 5666 9,231.92 A-100-00-1949-010 L-100-00-3949-010 9,231.92 0.00

School Improvement 5690 164,392.67 A-100-00-1949-011 L-100-00-3949-011 164,392.67 0.00

Severance Pay 5723 38,884.18 A-100-00-1949-012 L-100-00-3949-012 38,884.18 0.00

WB & Lizza Sprague 5731 3,258.80 A-100-00-1949-013 L-100-00-3949-013 3,258.80 0.00

Brown & Brown School 5749 25,926.20 A-100-00-1949-014 L-100-00-3949-014 25,926.20 0.00

Working capital 5757 486,656.94 A-100-00-0000-108 486,656.94 0.00

Zoning bond 5765 12,568.65 A-100-00-1949-016 L-100-00-3949-016 12,568.65 0.00

Boivin construction 5773 727.10 A-100-00-1949-017 L-100-00-3949-017 727.10 0.00

Town Clerk preservation 5781 1,142.98 A-100-00-1949-018 L-100-00-3949-018 1,142.98 0.00

Revaluation Fund 5799 48,010.19 A-100-00-1949-019 L-100-00-3949-019 48,010.19 0.00

AES Expansion 0934 8,686.82 A-100-00-1980-002 L-100-00-2980-002 8,686.82 0.00

General Ledger Account

\\STHDC001\THAdmin\AdminShare\Board of Selectmen\BOS Meeting Packets\2019\12.4.19 BOS Meeting Materials\Treasurer's Report\cash 

balances.xlsx



OCTOBER 2019
Deposits

ON-LINE OFFICE RECEIPT TOTAL DIFFERENCE
10/1 575.61 575.61 0.00
10/1 1,759.22 12,241.72 12,241.72 14,000.94 0.00
10/2 47.24 26,981.48 26,981.48 27,028.72 0.00
10/3 876.15 13,055.38 13,055.38 13,931.53 0.00
10/3 (635.01) (635.01) 0.00 NSF from 9/27
10/4 888.73 888.73 0.00
10/5 0.00 0.00
10/6 1,311.25 1,311.25 0.00
10/7 2,820.12 43,882.70 43,882.70 46,702.82 0.00
10/8 2,634.47 14,599.92 14,599.92 17,234.39 0.00
10/9 1,271.78 27,731.45 27,731.45 29,003.23 0.00

10/10 417.81 59,003.40 59,003.40 59,421.21 0.00
10/11 181.17 181.17 0.00
10/12 0.00 0.00
10/13 0.00 0.00
10/14 4,533.29 HOLIDAY 4,533.29
10/15 3,469.46 44,475.76 44,475.76 47,945.22 0.00
10/16 13,278.53 13,278.53 13,278.53 0.00
10/17 1,525.32 25,550.13 25,550.13 27,075.45 0.00
10/18 0.00 0.00
10/19 1,410.10 1,410.10 0.00
10/20 85.86 85.86 0.00
10/21 73,158.66 73,158.66 73,158.66 0.00
10/22 1,025.21 20,701.32 20,701.32 21,726.53 0.00
10/23 58,142.24 58,142.24 58,142.24 0.00
10/23 1,720.63 39,912.31 39,912.31 41,632.94 0.00
10/24 32,536.89 32,536.89 32,536.89 0.00
10/25 9,007.44 9,007.44 0.00
10/26 0.00 0.00
10/27 947.88 947.88 0.00
10/28 4,233.86 569,815.83 569,815.83 574,049.69 0.00
10/28 116,716.03 116,716.03 116,716.03 0.00
10/28 157,950.47 157,950.47 157,950.47 0.00
10/29 4,532.08 39,964.99 39,964.99 44,497.07 0.00
10/30 3,192.26 51,877.74 51,877.74 55,070.00 0.00
10/31 83,505.30 83,505.30 83,505.30 0.00
10/31 60,299.44 60,299.44 60,299.44 0.00

Total 47,831.93 1,585,381.69 1,573,139.97 1,633,213.62

COLLECTIONS BY TAX YEAR:
RE PP MV MVS INTEREST FEE TOTAL

2012 0.00
2013 6.00 6.00
2014 53.11 17.53 70.64
2015 0.00
2016 0.00
2017 2,948.51 1,368.01 814.67 1,241.49 72.00 6,444.68
2018 1,605,077.95 3,046.34 17,249.25 1,561.85 391.92 1,627,327.31
NSF
2018 (602.88) (27.13) (5.00)                  (635.01)

TOTAL 1,608,026.46 3,046.34 18,014.38 867.78 2,793.74 464.92 1,633,213.62

UNCOLLECTED TAXES BY TAX YEAR:
RE PP MV MVS TOTAL

2006 207.27 207.27 2420.54
2007 476.65 71.26 547.91 online cash A-100-00-0000-990 48,377.67 48,377.67
2008 520.26 28.15 548.41 office cash A-100-00-0000-990 509,667.93 50798.21
2009 579.60 579.60 online DIT A-100-00-1200-001 3,192.26 3,192.26
2010 211.42 16.56 227.98 office DIT A-100-00-1200-001 1,112,666.69 1,112,666.69
2011 439.82 4,592.58 249.48 5,281.88 online DIT A-100-00-1200-001 3,738.00 1,115,858.95
2012 2,828.18 3,362.89 225.89 6,416.96 office DIT A-100-00-1200-001 36,952.93 36,952.93
2013 12.13 3,485.83 1,776.65 783.06 6,057.67 2014 taxes A-100-00-1200-020 53.11 53.11
2014 1,225.76 4,551.81 2,216.74 4,008.32 12,002.63 2015 taxes A-100-00-1200-022 37,006.04
2015 1,679.64 6,018.82 11,347.26 2,480.67 21,526.39 2016 taxes A-100-00-1200-023 45067.78
2016 9,335.21 7,835.29 10,849.64 3,213.77 31,233.91 2017 taxes A-100-00-1200-024 5,131.19 5,131.19
2017 54,835.65 9,821.95 24,775.71 8,304.67 97,737.98 2018 taxes A-100-00-1200-025 1,624,770.66 50198.97
2018 3,996,880.76 195,310.62 78,342.10 4,270,533.48 interest 2-100-10-0000-103 2,793.74 2,793.74

liens/fees 2-100-10-0000-104 464.92 4/8/1901
TOTAL 4,064,408.97 229,852.50 139,051.50 19,589.10 4,452,902.07 misc inc 2-100-80-0000-801 4,452,902.07

1,673,904.55 1,673,904.55 0.00 0.00



Cavender Michael  
Real Estate 

50.93 Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Nissan Infinity 317.67 Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Nissan Infinity 199.29 Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Nissan Infinity 198.30 Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Nissan Infinity 408.08 
 

Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Penn, William & Elinor 1364.61 
 

Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

USB Leasing 
Motor Vehicle 

908.69 Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

12/4/19 Tax Refunds Total: $ 3,447.57 

Sec. 12-129. Refund of excess payments. Any person, firm or corporation who pays any property tax in 
excess of the principal of such tax as entered in the rate book of the tax collector and covered by his 
warrant therein, or in excess of the legal interest, penalty or fees pertaining to such tax, or who pays a 
tax from which the payor is by statute exempt and entitled to an abatement, or who, by reason of a 
clerical error on the part of the assessor or board of assessment appeals, pays a tax in excess of that 
which should have been assessed against his property, or who is entitled to a refund because of the 
issuance of a certificate of correction, may make application in writing to the collector of taxes for the 
refund of such amount. Such application shall be delivered or postmarked by the later of (1) three years 
from the date such tax was due, (2) such extended deadline as the municipality may, by ordinance, 
establish, or (3) ninety days after the deletion of any item of tax assessment by a final court order or 
pursuant to subdivision (3) of subsection (c) of section 12-53 or section 12-113. Such application shall 
contain a recital of the facts and shall state the amount of the refund requested. The collector shall, 
after examination of such application, refer the same, with his recommendations thereon, to the board 
of selectmen in a town or to the corresponding authority in any other municipality, and shall certify to 
the amount of refund, if any, to which the applicant is entitled. The existence of another tax delinquency 
or other debt owed by the same person, firm or corporation shall be sufficient grounds for denying the 
application. Upon receipt of such application and certification, the selectmen or such other authority 
shall draw an order upon the treasurer in favor of such applicant for the amount of refund so certified. 
Any action taken by such selectmen or such other authority shall be a matter of record, and the tax 
collector shall be notified in writing of such action. Upon receipt of notice of such action, the collector 
shall make in his rate book a notation which will date, describe and identify each such transaction. Each 
tax collector shall, at the end of each fiscal year, prepare a statement showing the amount of each such 
refund, to whom made and the reason therefor. Such statement shall be published in the annual report 
of the municipality or filed in the town clerk’s office within sixty days of the end of the fiscal year. Any 
payment for which no timely application is made or granted under this section shall permanently remain 
the property of the municipality. Nothing in this section shall be construed to allow a refund based upon 
an error of judgment by the assessors. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the legislative 
body of a municipality may, by ordinance, authorize the tax collector to retain payments in excess of the 
amount due provided the amount of the excess payment is less than five dollars. 

 



















Assessor’s office monthly activity – October 2019 
 

Processing conveyances  
 

9 

Processing building permits 
 

15 

Prorating motor vehicle grand list 
 

10 

Updating field cards 
 

3 

Correspondence 
 

79 

Providing assistance to town hall 
customers (ie taxpayer, title searchers, 
appraisers etc) 
 

112 

Providing assistance to other 
departments 
 

 

Researching mapping issue or 
questions 
 

3 

Reports and communication with the 
state of connecticut 
 

2 

Mls research 
 

3 

Scheduling meeting and appointments 
 

1 

Office work – ie filing, updating sales 
book, scanning documents etc  
 

 

Personal property grand list 
 

RECEIVE AND PROCESS 
PERSONAL PROPERTY DECS 

Personal Property Discovery  
Homeowner’s program  



 
Veteran’s program 
 

 

Income & expenses 
 

 

Renter’s rebate program 
 

 

Tax exemptions  
 

 

Adds to the re, pp or mv grand list 
 

2 

Pa 490 
 

3 

Provided assistance to baa 
 

 

Researching and providing requested 
information to auditor 
 

 

Real property inspections  
Personal property inspections  
Real property appraisals  
Taxpayer correspondence 4 
Attorney correspondence  
Tax appeal review/appraisal  
Mls review 3 
Town board/dept assistance  
Review & Approve C of Cs 10 
Review & Approve Farmland & 
Forestland Assessment Applications 

3 

Review, Approve, & create/data entry 
on land splits & mergers 

 

Mapping Research/Discrepancies  
  

 





ANDOVER PUBLIC LIBRARY - 

LIBRARIAN'S REPORT - November 

2019

Nov-19

YTD 19-20 

(July 1, 

2019 - June 

30, 2020)

Adult:
  Fiction 384 2511

  Non-fiction 63 474

  Video 104 560

  Audio 37 273

  Magazines 5 27

  E-reader (Kindle) 0 0

Total Adult 593 3845

Children:
  Fiction 127 1129

  Non-fiction 17 167

  Video 0 72

  Audio 0 57

Total Children 144 1425

Young Adult:

  Fiction 12 211

  Non-fiction 2 9

  Audio 0 1

  Magazines 0 0

Total Young Adult 14 221

Total Fiction 523 3851

Total Non-fiction 82 650

Total Video 104 632

Total Audio 37 331

Total Magazines 5 27

Total Uncategorized** 19 151

Total Passes 1 12

Total OverDrive 128 710

Total E-readers 0 0

Total Circulation 899 6364

Out-of-town circ. 102 550

Ref. questions 29 246

Patrons registered:

  Andover 3142

  Out-of-town 460

Total Patrons 3602

Collection size * 19778

Public Computer Usage (hrs.) 60 310.5

ILL provided 43 316



ILL received 55 280

# Patrons (inc. programs): 452 3682

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE 134 844

Number of programs: 12 65



11/4/2019 

ANDOVER SENIOR TRANSPORTATION 
MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2019 

Dated 12/1/2019  
Cathy Palazzi 

Senior Coordinator 
Month of November: 
 
1) Drug tests – one driver – okay. 
2) Annual Driver Safety classes to be held December 6. Driving test will be completed by end of January. 
3) Oil Maintenance to be done on small bus in December.   
4) New Driver log sheets redesigned for more efficiency.  
5) New Driver Pre-Inspection forms and Incident Log forms recreated in November. 
6) Driver Safety Manuals compiled for all drivers. 
7) List of Clients Serviced in November    : 

• Medicals     45  
• Shopping           131 

(includes Food Pantry/Food Share/Friday Lunch) 
• Special Events    58  
• Maintenance       0 
• Incident Log       1 
• Disabled   32 
• Veterans       6 
• Meetings  12 

(includes YAH and Transportation Meetings) 
Total Passengers             285   
 

 
Dated 12/1/2019  
Cathy Palazzi 
Senior Coordinator 
 




	12.4.19 BOS Regular Meeting Agenda
	12.4.19 Administrators Report for BOS
	2020 Monthly Calendar
	Website Development Committee - Proposed Calendar
	BOARD OR COMMITTEE NAME: Website Development Committee

	Website Development Committee - Civis Plus CT Accounts
	All Website Accounts

	Website Development Committee - Civic Plus, Andover Cost Break Down
	8-29-19 RiMaConn Relay - Permit for Use of Town Property
	Authorized Signatory for State of CT Grants
	Resolution for State of CT Dept of Emergency Services & Public Protection, Division of Emergency Management & Homeland Security
	FFY 2019 State Homeland Security Grant, Program Region 3 Memorandum of Agreement
	Community Room Furniture
	11.6.19 BOS Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	11.6.19 BOS Regular Meeting Minutes
	11.6.19 BOS Regular Meeting, Sign-in Sheet
	'Dump Swap' Letter from Kopps
	11.6.19 MOU to BOE for use of space for evening meetings
	ADP5E43.tmp
	Sheet1


	11.12.19 BOS Special Meeting Minutes.pdf
	11.12.19 BOS Special Meeting Minutes
	11.12.19 BOS Special Meeting Sign-in Sheet
	111219~2
	Goals for the Town of Andover

	ADP7E7A.tmp
	Monthly overage report template

	ADPBBD3.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPEA67.tmp
	request for overexp

	ADP742B.tmp
	BOARD OR COMMITTEE NAME: Website Development Committee




